
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING PACKET 

AUGUST 25, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

City Manager Mayor  

Darrell Boeske Merle Aaron 

Assistant City Manager Council Members  

Aimee Phillips Allan Steagall 

City Secretary Ray Calfee 

Jason Stuebe Andy Curry 

 Norman Funderburk 

 David Pierce  

     

Agenda 

Humble City Council 

Regular Meeting 

Thursday, August 25, 2016 6:30 P.M.  

City Hall Council Chamber, 114 West Higgins 

Humble, Texas 

 

Call to order. 

 

1. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

2. Presentation of Library Cards to the City Council by the Octavia Fields Branch Library.  

 

3. Consent agenda items which consist of ministerial or “housekeeping” items as required 

by law.  Items may be removed from the consent agenda and discussed by majority vote 

of the Council. 

 

a. Minutes – Regular Meeting Minutes July 28, 2016; Special Meeting Minutes August, 

2, 2016; Special Meeting Minutes August 8, 2016 

b. Financial Report 

c. Current Invoices 

d. Monthly Department Reports 

e. Correspondence 

 

4. Public Hearing: considering the renewal of the City of Humble Curfew for persons under 

the age of 17.   

 

5. Adoption of Ordinance 16-782 readopting City of Humble Ordinance 13-719 which 

established a curfew for persons under the age of 17 years, between 11:00 P.M. on 

Sunday, Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, or Thursday and 6:00 A.M. on the following 

day, between the hours of 12:01 A.M. and 6:00 A.M. on any Saturday or Sunday, and 

between the hours of 9:00 A.M. and 2:30 P.M. for school-aged children on school days; 

providing it unlawful for any person subject to a curfew hereunder to remain in any 

public place or on the premises of any establishment within the city during curfew hours; 

providing it unlawful for any parent or guardian of a person subject to a curfew hereunder 

to knowingly permit, or by insufficient control, allow such person to remain in any public 

place or on the premises of any establishment within the city during curfew hours; 



providing it unlawful for any person owning, operating, or in the employment of any 

establishment in the city to knowingly allow a person subject to a curfew hereunder to 

remain on the premises of such establishment during curfew hours; providing defenses to 

prosecution for violations hereunder; providing a penalty of an amount not to exceed 

$500.00 for each day of violation of any provision hereof; making certain findings; 

repealing all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict herewith and 

providing for severability.  It is the intention of the City Council and it is hereby ordained 

that the provisions of this ordinance shall become and be made part of the code of 

ordinances, City of Humble, Texas and the sections of this ordinance may be renumbered 

to accomplish such intention.   

 

6. Adoption of Ordinance 16-783 amending Chapter 38 “Subdivisions.” Section 29 “Off-

Street Parking Requirements” by adding subsection aa minimum parking requirements 

for storage unit facilities; and making other findings and provisions related thereto.  

 

 

7. Approval of a Development Plat and Replat No. 3 of TPG Will Clayton, a subdivision of 

8.7572 acres of land, comprised of Reserves “E,” “G” and “H” recorded in TPG Will 

Clayton Replat No. 2 in F.C. 676929 Harris County Map Records located in the Wherry 

B. Adams Survey, Abstract No. 95, City of Humble, Harris County, Texas; 3 Reserves, 1 

Block. 

 

8. Approval of a Subdivision Plat of USA Plat 1, a subdivision of 8.803 acres of land, 

located in the John Schmidt Survey, Abstract-1318, City of Humble, Harris County, 

Texas; 1 Block, 1 Reserve. 

 

9. Approval of annual Agreement for Services between the City of Humble, Texas and 

HDR Engineering, Inc. providing for Geographical Information System hosting and 

support. 

 

10. Approval of contract between the City of Humble, Texas and Tetra Tech, Inc. providing 

for pre-event disaster debris monitoring services. 

 

11. Approval of blanket road closure request by ARKK Engineers and Triple B Construction 

to facilitate 2016 Concrete Pavement Improvement Project. 

 

Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Humble, Texas 

will be held on Thursday, August 25, 2016 at 6:30 P.M. at the City Hall Council Chamber, 114 

West Higgins, Humble, Texas.  The following subjects will be discussed, to wit: See Agenda. 

 

Posted this 22
nd

 day of August, 2016 at 5:00 P.M. 

 

 

      

City Secretary 

 



I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Governing Body of 

the City of Humble, Texas, is a true and correct copy of said Notice and that I posted a true and 

correct copy of said notice on the bulletin board at City Hall, 114 West Higgins, Humble, Texas 

and the City’s website, www.cityofhumble.com.  The Agenda and Notice are readily accessible 

to the general public at all times.  Said Notice and Agenda were posted on August 22, 2016 at 

5:00 P.M. and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled 

time of said meeting. 

 

This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the Humble City Hall on the 

following date and time:       by                   

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the  , day of    , 2016. 

 

      

Notary Public – Harris County, Texas  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.cityofhumble.com/


 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

8-25-2016 

 

AGENDA ITEM #3A 

 

JULY 28, 2016 MINUTES 

AUGUST 2, 2016 MINUTES 

AUGUST 8, 2016 MINUTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes 07-28-2016 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

JULY 28, 2016 – 6:30 P.M. 
 

HELD AT CITY HALL, 114 WEST HIGGINS, HUMBLE, TEXAS 
 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
   § 
COUNTY OF HARRIS § 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Merle Aaron, Presiding 
    Council Member Andy Curry 
    Council Member Allan Steagall 
    Council Member David Pierce 
    City Manager Darrell Boeske     
    City Secretary Jason Stuebe 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Mayor Pro Tem Norman Funderburk 
    Council Member Ray Calfee 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Assistant City Manager Aimee Phillips 
    Fire Chief Gary Outlaw 
    Police Chief Delbert Dawes 
    Public Works Director Barry Brock 
    Human Resources Manager Kathy Babineaux 
    Captain Ken Theis 
             
VISITORS PRESENT:  Diane Pierce 
    Sarah Mays 
    Blair Bundren 
    Randy Rutherford 
    Steve Adkisson 
    John Rudloff 
    Melanie Feuk 
    Janna Hoglund 
    Lloyd Jernigan  
              
Mayor Aaron called the regular meeting of the Humble City Council to order with a quorum present at 
6:30 P.M.   
 
1. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

Chief of Police Dawes offered the invocation and Mayor Aaron led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA 



Minutes 07-28-2016 

2A. MINUTES – MEETING MINUTES JUNE 23, 2016 
2B. FINANCIAL REPORT 
2C. CURRENT INVOICES 
2D. MONTHLY DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
2E. CORRESPONDENCE 

 
Upon a motion by Council Curry, the City Council voted four (4) for and none (0) opposed to approve 
the Consent Agenda. 
 

3. PUBLIC HEARING: CONSIDERING THE RENEWAL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE CURFEW FOR PERSONS 
UNDER THE AGE OF 17. 
 
Mayor Aaron opened the public hearing for consideration of re-adopting the City of Humble curfew 
for persons under the age of 17 at 6:31 P.M.  There being no speakers, Mayor Aaron closed the 
Public Hearing at 6:32 P.M. and informed all in attendance that the next Public Hearing on the 
matter would be on August 25, 2016 at 6:30 P.M. prior to re-adoption of the ordinance.  
 

4. RESOLUTION 16-768 ADOPTING A SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES APPLICABLE TO REGULATORY 
INSPECTIONS, PERMITTING, APPLICATIONS, AND OTHER MATTERS. 
 
City Manager Boeske recommended approval of the resolution. 
 
Upon a motion by Council Member Steagall, the City Council voted four (4) for and non (0) opposed 
to adopt resolution 16-768 adopting a schedule of fees and charges for regulatory inspections, 
permitting, applications, and other matters.   
 

5. APPROVAL OF A DEVELOPMENT PLAT OF MAIN EVENT HUMBLE, A SUBDIVISION, OF 6.3741 ACRES 
OF LAND SITUATED IN THE WHERRY B. ADAMS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 95, HARRIS COUNTY, 
TEXAS; 1 BLOCK, 1 RESERVE.   

 
City Manager Boeske recommended approval.   
 
Mayor Aaron stated that the city was excited about Main Event coming to the city and recognized 
the representatives, Sarah Mays and Blair Bundren for attending.  Council Member Pierce asked if 
Ms. Mays or Bundren could elaborate on what the landscaping plans were for the project stating 
that the area is prone to flooding and it is important that trees and bushes are replanted not only 
for aesthetic reasons.  Ms. Bundren showed Mr. Pierce a copy of the landscape plan and stated that 
all parking lot islands will be landscaped with shrubs, trees, and grass including various oaks and 
loblolly pines.  Ms. Mays added that if the Council or staff had any recommendations for trees that 
we could submit those recommendations to the landscape architect. 
 
Upon a motion by Council Member Curry, the City Council voted four (4) for and none (0) opposed 
to approve the Main Event Humble Development Plat.    
 

6. APPROVAL OF REPLAT #1 A SUBDIVISION PLAT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAT OF INTERCONTINENTAL 
COMMERCE PARK A SUBDIVISION OF 10.322 ACRES OF LAND SITUATED IN THE W.B. ADAMS 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 95, HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS 1 BLOCK, 2 RESERVES.   

 



Minutes 07-28-2016 

City Manager Boeske recommended approval. 
 
Mayor Aaron recognized representatives from Dev-Tex, Mr. Randy Rutherford and Mr. Steve 
Adkisson.  Mayor Aaron stated that the residents across the street on South Houston Avenue were 
concerned about what the frontage of the project would look like and asked for an update.  Mr. 
Rutherford stated that the buildings fronting South Houston will have a brick and stucco finish as 
well as the buildings fronting the main drive on the interior of the property.  Council Member Pierce 
asked what was being done in regards to trees.  Mr. Adkisson stated that as many trees that they 
can leave in they plan to noting that they won’t really be able to know until the utilities are laid 
down.   
 
Upon a motion by Council Member Steagall, the City Council voted four (4) for and none (0) opposed 
to approve the Intercontinental Commerce Park Subdivision and Development Plat.  
 

7. APPROVAL OF A SHORT FORM PLAT OF SRG-HUMBLE, A SUBDIVISION OF 0.582 ACRE OF LAND 
SITUATED IN THE WHERRY B. ADAMS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 95, HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS; 1 
BLOCK, 2 LOTS.   
 
City Manager Boeske stated the property was located on York Street and was a residence.  City 
Secretary Stuebe stated that it was once three lots consolidated into one and now being subdivided 
into two.   
 
Upon a motion by Council Member Steagall, the City Council voted four (4) for and none (0) opposed 
to approve the SRG-Humble Short Form Plat.  
 

8. APPROVAL OF ENGINEER’S PROPOSAL TO REPLACE THE RANKIN ROAD ROADSIDE DITCH 
OUTFALLS; CONVERSION OF THE CIVIC CENTER DETENTION POND TO A WET BOTTOM POND; AND 
REPAIR OF THE SOUTHWEST WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT DETENTION POND.  

 
Council Member Pierce asked who would be performing the work.  Mr. Rudloff stated that the work 
on the retention ponds may be put out for bid, however the city would explore asking for a Change 
Order with Triple B Construction on the soon to be approved contract for the 2016 Concrete 
Pavement Improvements Project to conduct the work on Rankin Road.   
 
City Manager Boeske stated that the detention pond at the Civic Center actually makes water due to 
the water table and it has been something the city has fought for 20 years.  He stated that it would 
be much better if the city makes it into a pond with a pump and water feature to aerate it to 
improve the appearance and functionality.   
 
Upon a motion by Mayor Aaron, the City Council voted four (4) for and none (0) opposed to approve 
the Engineer’s Proposal.   

 
There being no further business before the City Council, Mayor Aaron adjourned the Regular Meeting of 
the City Council at 7:44 P.M. on Thursday, July 28, 2016   

 
 
 
 



Minutes 07-28-2016 

    
             

       Merle Aaron 
       Mayor 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
       
 Jason Stuebe 
 City Secretary 



Minutes 08-2-2016 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

AUGUST 2, 2016 – 6:30 P.M. 
 

HELD AT CITY HALL, 114 WEST HIGGINS, HUMBLE, TEXAS 
 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
   § 
COUNTY OF HARRIS § 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Merle Aaron, Presiding 
    Mayor Pro Tem Norman Funderburk  
    Council Member Andy Curry 
    Council Member Allan Steagall 
    City Manager Darrell Boeske     
    City Secretary Jason Stuebe 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Council Member David Pierce 
    Council Member Ray Calfee 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Assistant City Manager Aimee Phillips 
    Fire Chief Gary Outlaw 
    Asst. Fire Chief Mike Legoudes  
    Public Works Director Barry Brock 
    Streets Superintendent Stacy Williams 
              
VISITORS PRESENT:  John Rudloff 
    Doug Bradford 
    Kevin Burke 
    Joseph Burke 
    Donnie McMannes 
              
Mayor Aaron called the regular meeting of the Humble City Council to order with a quorum present at 
9:00 A.M.   
 
1. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

Mayor Pro Tem Funderburk offered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

2. APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF HUMBLE AND TRIPLE B SERVICES, LLP FOR THE 
2016 CONCRETE PAVEMENT IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,179,125.50.   

 
City Manager Boeske recommended approval of the contract. 
 



Minutes 08-2-2016 

Mayor Aaron invited Kevin and Joseph Burke to speak on behalf of Triple B Construction.  Mr. Burke 
informed the Council that Triple B would like to hold a town hall style meeting before work beings to 
discuss the project and timeline and meet with the residents in the affected area.  Mayor Aaron 
agreed that that was a great idea and encouraged Mr. Burke to be in contact with the City Manager 
and Assistant City Manager to coordinate a time and place.   
 
Upon a motion by Council Member Steagall, the City Council voted four (4) for and none (0) opposed 
to approve the contract for the 2016 Concrete Pavement Improvements Project in the amount of 
$6,179,125.50.   

 
There being no further business before the City Council, Mayor Aaron adjourned the Regular Meeting of 
the City Council at 9:02 A.M. on Tuesday, August 2, 2016   

 
 
 
 
    
             

       Merle Aaron 
       Mayor 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
       
 Jason Stuebe 
 City Secretary 



Minutes 08-08-2016 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
 

AUGUST 8, 2016 – 9:00 A.M. 
 

HELD AT CITY HALL, 114 WEST HIGGINS, HUMBLE, TEXAS 
 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
   § 
COUNTY OF HARRIS § 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Merle Aaron, Presiding 
    Mayor Pro Tem Norman Funderburk 
    Council Member Allan Steagall 
    Council Member Ray Calfee 
    Council Member Andy Curry 
    City Manager Darrell Boeske 
    City Secretary Jason Stuebe 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Council Member David Pierce 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Assistant City Manager Aimee Phillips 
     Police Chief Delbert Dawes 
    Fire Chief Gary Outlaw 
    Public Works Director Barry Brock 
    Human Resources Manager Kathy Babineaux 
    Chief Building Official Ray Pearson 
    Municipal Court Administrator Sandra Elliott 
    Parks Director Jeremy Mittag 
    Civic Center Operations Manager Jacob Schultz 
    Fire Marshal James Nykaza 
    Captain Ken Theis 
    Assistant Fire Chief Mike Legoudes 
    Assistant Fire Chief Al Taska 
    Assistant Public Works Director Mark Arnold 
    Facilities Manager Mark Martin 
     
VISITORS PRESENT:  Donnie McMannes 
               
Mayor Aaron called the special meeting of the Humble City Council to order with a quorum present at 
9:00 A.M.   

 
1. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

Council Member Norman Funderburk offered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 



Minutes 08-08-2016 

2. BUDGET WORKSHOP FOR PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017. 
Mayor Aaron began the workshop by thanking everyone who worked on the budget and instructed 
the Council to ask any questions as staff progressed through their review. 
 
City Manager Boeske presented the estimates for revenue and expenditures for Fiscal Year 2017.  
He stated that the budget was prepared with an estimated Ad Valorem Valuation of 
$1,550,000,000.00 and computed on a $0.20 tax rate per $100.00 of valuation with 100% of the Ad 
Valorem revenues going towards Maintenance and Operations expenses.  Mr. Boeske further 
recommended a public hearing for both the tax rate and the budget to occur in September. 
 
Mr. Boeske then outlined the combined Statement of Estimated Revenues and Expenditures: 
 

REVENUE 
General Fund Receipts  $   61,798,605.84 
Water & Sewer Operating Fund Receipts 18,318,000.00 
I & S Fund, G.O. Bonds, Series 1993 3,950.00 
Special Revenue Fund Receipts (HOT) 1,142,000.00 
Special Revenue Fund Receipts (Traffic Enforcement) 
Capital Projects Fund Receipts 

3,830,000.00 
19,167,416.22 

 $   104,259,972.06 

  
OPERATING EXPENSE – GENERAL FUND 

Administration Department $   17,335,643.65 
Street Department 1,971,786.26 
Fire Department 3,805,967.62 
EMS Division 2,564,397.59 
Police Department 11,695,267.00 
Park Department 1,267,295.00 
Animal Control Department 271,100.00 
Municipal Court Department 1,119,359.68 
Inspection Department 567,206.50 
Vehicle / Equipment Maint. Department 334,095.00 
Fire Marshal Department 792,462.81 
Building Maintenance Department 234,251.81 
Civic Center Department 1,350,090.00 
Civic Arena Division 194,000.00 
Civic Center Activity Division 1,511,350.00 
Bender Performing Arts Center 301,200.00 

 $45,315,472.92 
 
 
 (CAPITAL OUTLAY INCLUDED IN OPERATING EXPENSES) 
General Fund $     3,939,800.80 
Water & Sewer Operating Fund 345,000.00 

 $     4,284,800.80 
 
 



Minutes 08-08-2016 

 
OPERATING EXPENSE – WATER AND SEWER FUND 
Water Department $     6,198,524.44 
Sewer Department 3,465,703.05 

 $     9,664,227.48 
 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS INTEREST AND SINKING FUND REQUIREMENTS 
G.O. Bonds, Series 1993 $                    0.00 
 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND – HOT 
Operating Expenses $        518,000.00 
 
(CAPITAL OUTLAY INCLUDED IN OPERATING EXPENSES) 
Hotel/Motel $55,000.00 
 
 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND – TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT 
Operating Expenses 
 
(CAPITAL OUTLAY INCLUDED IN OPERATING EXPENSES) 
Traffic Enforcement                                  $30,800.00 
 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
Capital Outlay 
  

$     2,000,605.00 
 
 
 
 
 

$19,148,656.79 

 Sddfaasdfasdfasdf 
 TOTAL EXPENDITURES     $   76,646,962.19 

 
ESTIMATED SURPLUS 
General Fund $   16,483,132.92 
Water & Sewer Operating Fund 8,653,772.52 
Interest & Sinking Fund 3,950.00 
Special Revenue Fund (HOT) 624,000.00 
Special Revenue Fund (Traffic Enforcement)  
Capital Projects Fund 

1,829,395.00 
18,759.43 

 $   27,613,009.87 
 
TOTAL ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES & SURPLUS      $   104,259,972.06  

 
 
Mr. Boeske noted that the Sales Tax revenues for the current year are down $450,000.00 to 
$500,000.00 to date but if we receive $1,000,000.00 in the remaining reporting periods the city 
should meet or slightly exceed its projected sales tax revenue for the year.  Mr. Boeske stated that 
he believed the city was still in good shape but that it should air on the side of caution.   
 
Mr. Funderburk asked if the city’s projection for the next Fiscal Year was $200,000.00 more than 
what was projected for Fiscal Year 2016.  Mr. Boeske indicated, yes.   
 



Minutes 08-08-2016 

Mr. Boeske noted that the estimated Water and Sewer Fund operating balances were in good 
shape.  Ms. Phillips noted that a water and sewer rate increase will be proposed to reflect the 
percentage increase being passed onto the city by the City of Houston.  Mr. Boeske reiterated that 
these rate increases have historically been weighted towards the commercial users so that we may 
maintain a reasonably low rate for our citizens. 
 
Ms. Phillips noted the Interest & Sinking Fund and General Obligation Bonds was related to monies 
collected from delinquent taxes as well as funds segregated from the 1993 series bonds.  Mr. Boeske 
stated the 1993 series bonds were for the sewer plant. 
 
Mr. Boeske stated that the special revenue funds including Hotel Occupancy Tax and Red Light 
Camera were in pretty good shape over all.  Mr. Boeske noted that two of the city’s larger hotel 
properties have been offline due to the flood but that a new property has opened at Will Clayton 
and 59 and that the fund should recover though he anticipated revenues being down by 
approximately $100,000.00.  In reference to the Red Light Camera Fund, revenue was estimated at 
$2,000,000.00.  Ms. Phillips stated that two lights have been down and will remain down until 
approximately November, but while no tickets are being generated from those cameras, American 
Traffic Solutions has not been charging the city for operation of those cameras which amounts to 
about $10,000.00 per month.   
 
Mr. Boeske stated that the Capital Projects Fund shows a transfer of $14,582,305.65 and noted that 
last year we began showing the Metro funds being transferred out of the General Fund to the 
Capital Projects Fund.  Ms. Phillips stated that the $1.1 million beginning balance was made up from 
transfers made for the sewer plant and sewer rehab and that we sock money away each year to 
cover sewer rehab.  Mayor Aaron asked if we had just one more phase of sewer rehab and if that 
was located in Bender II.  Mr. Brock stated that these funds were completely separate from the 
Bender II project but that when Bender II is executed we will use some of these funds to cover the 
sewer rehab.   
 
Mr. Boeske stated that a 3% raise for the employees was included in the budget as well as an 
increase in the insurance rates.  Ms. Phillips stated that an 8% across the board increase was 
computed for insurance based on the recommendation from the city’s advisor.   
 
City Manager Boeske then reviewed the M&O and Capital Expenditures by Department. 
 
Administration: 
Mr. Steagall inquired as to who the part time employees were.  Ms. Phillips stated that the part time 
employees shown including one of the city hall clerks, the facilities manager, and infectious disease 
control officer.    Mr. Funderburk noted an increase in the full time head count by one.  Ms. Phillips 
stated that one of the city hall clerks is currently split between permits and administration and is 
working full time through a temp agency but that the city would like to bring that position on as a 
full time employee.  Mr. Boeske noted that with the exception of retirement, it would not cost much 
more than what we are paying the agency now.   
 
Mr. Boeske stated that the capital expenditure for the Administration department was for a new 
natural gas generator, which needs to be replaces at a cost of $125,000.00.  Mr. Martin stated that 
there would likely be an additional cost on the order of $6,000 to $7,000 to bring natural gas to the 



Minutes 08-08-2016 

property.  Ms. Phillips stated that there would be enough in the building maintenance line item to 
cover the additional cost.  
 
Ms. Phillips noted that the computer line items are now shown in each of the individual 
departments as opposed to being shown only in the Police Department budget to help clean up the 
auditing process.  
 
Ms. Phillips stated that the retirement, unemployment insurance and workers compensation had 
slight increases as well.   
 
STREET DEPARTMENT 
Mr. Boeske stated that capital expenditures for the Street Department included a new truck and 
tractor at an expense of $120,000.00. 
 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 
Mr. Boeske stated that there were minimal changes to the Fire Department Budget.  Capital 
expenditures included a new cascade truck which would replace both an older rescue truck as well 
as the current cascade truck, both of which are 16 to 17 years old.  He anticipated the new cascade 
truck would be a 15 year vehicle.   
 
Chief Outlaw noted the new CAD interface system stating that the current station alerting system is 
a homemade system that is aging and is not expandable and that the new system will be expandable 
and user friendly.   
 
Mr. Curry asked what the life cycle of bunker gear was.  Chief Outlaw stated it was 10 years unless it 
is damaged or does not pass annual testing. 
 
Mr. Steagall asked about the storage buildings.  Chief Outlaw stated the new storage building would 
be constructed just east of Station 1 and will help with equipment storage and testing.   
 
Mr. Steagall asked about the commercial grade treadmills.  Chief Outlaw stated that the department 
currently only has one and it is worn out. 
 
Mr. Boeske stated the total capital expenditures for the Fire Department were $693,078.80.  
 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Mr. Boeske stated that the capital expenditures for the Police Department included replacement of 
the Coban units.  There have been extensive conversations among the staff and the units cannot be 
done in phases and so it is best to replace the entire system to cover them under a single warranty 
and service.  Additionally, five patrol Tahoes are included as well as three Tahoes for detectives.  Mr. 
Boeske also noted the buildout of the second floor and reminded the Council that when the holding 
facility expansion project was complete, the second floor was shelled out.  Chief Dawes stated that 
the buildout would include a new chief’s office, captain’s office, and conference room due to the 
expansion of the dispatch area which will migrate to where the current records office and chief’s 
suite is located as well as expansion of the IT and server room.   
 
Mr. Funderburk asked if all of the eight vehicles were replacements.  Chief Dawes stated that they 
were replacements.  Mr. Funderburk asked if this would be the last of the Crown Victoria 



Minutes 08-08-2016 

replacements.  Chief Dawes stated that he would like to keep some of the Crown Victorias around 
for use at the mall, as well as staging and/or if something happens to one of the Tahoes.  Mr. 
Steagall stated that it appeared the city was going back to using Chevrolets exclusively.  Mr. Boeske 
stated that that was the case as Ford does not make a police package Expedition and that the Tahoe 
is special built for Police with a lower height and wider frame.   
 
Mr. Curry asked if all of the officers have body cameras.  Chief Dawes stated that they do.  
 
The total capital expenditures for the Police Department totaled $1,027,164.00. 
 
PARKS DEPARTMENT 
Mr. Boeske stated that the capital expenditures for the Parks Department included a new building 
and office located next to the garden in the area directly behind the Civic Center.  Mr. Boeske stated 
he hoped the $250,000.00 was on the high end but that it was necessary to move the department 
out of Public Works in order to free up some space and locate them closer to the garden and Schott 
Park.  Mr. Steagall asked about the Polaris Ranger.  Mr. Mittag stated that it would replace the John 
Deere Gator and also noted that the department needed to replace three mowers.     
 
The total capital expenditures for the Parks Department totaled $302,000.00 
 
ANIMAL CONTROL 
Mr. Boeske stated that the capital expenditures for Animal Control included new cat cages at a cost 
of $8,000.00.    
 
MUNICIPAL COURT 
Mr. Boeske stated that he has discussed the Associate Judge position with Judge Pecerino and that 
adding Chuck Noll as an Associate Judge has worked out well.  Ms. Elliott stated it has been a 
smooth transition and has not had an impact on the budget as both positions are being paid the 
same amount and that they are not working at the same time.   
 
Mr. Boeske stated that the capital expenditures for the Municipal Court was for new furniture at a 
cost of $5,000.00 
 
INSPECTION DEPARTMENT 
Mr. Boeske stated that capital expenditures for the Inspection Department included a new pickup 
truck for Code Enforcement at a cost of $27,000.00 
 
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 
Mr. Boeske stated that capital expenditures for the Vehicle Maintenance Department included 
miscellaneous hand tools at a cost of $15,000.00 while also noting this was one of the divisions that 
actually reduced their budget.   
 
FIRE MARSHAL DEPARTMENT 
Mr. Boeske stated that he was proposing to make the inspector a full time position as he is currently 
split between the Fire Department and Fire Marshal’s Office.   
 
Mr. Nykaza stated that they will need new Coban body cameras as Coban will not support VieVu 
cameras after the summer.   



Minutes 08-08-2016 

 
Ms. Phillips asked what effect that may have on the Police Department.  Captain Theis stated that 
they are currently testing that now but that he believed the Coban cameras will be slightly cheaper 
than VieVu and will completely sync with the cars.   
 
Total capital expenditures for the Fire Marshal Office totaled $16,058.00 
 
BUILDING MAINTENANCE 
Mr. Boeske stated that capital expenditures  for Building Maintenance included a new table saw and 
the replacement of a ¾ ton truck at a cost of $37,500.00 
 
CIVIC CENTER 
Mr. Boeske stated that capital expenditures for the Civic Center included a little cosmetic work as is 
completed every year noting that the carpet replacement and painting would be in the only areas of 
the building that have not already been renovated.  Also included in the capital expenditures is a 
replacement truck and carpet extractor. 
 
Mr. Steagall asked if there has been any progress on finding the leak in the roof.  Mr. Schultz stated 
they were still working with the contractor to locate the problem and that they were working with 
the city to participate in replacement of the gutters.   
 
Total capital expenditures for the Civic Center totaled $57,000.00 
 
CIVIC ARENA 
Mr. Boeske stated that capital expenditures for the Civic Arena included completely redoing the dirt 
work in the arena noting that over the course of 20 years it has mixed into the stabilized lime 
beneath the subsurface making a hard surface that is dangerous for the animals.     
 
Total capital expenditures for the Civic Arena totaled $85,000.00 
 
CIVIC CENTER ACTIVITY CENTER 
Mr. Boeske stated he was requesting to replace the building at a cost of approximately 
$1,200,000.00.  He stated that the slab of the building was never seared properly and there have 
been issues with hydrocarbons seeping up.  He anticipated that programming would be moved to 
the Civic Center during construction.   
 
Mr. Funderburk asked if the $1,200,000.00 included the demo.  Mr. Boeske stated he believe it 
could all be done for that amount and he was envisioning a metal building with a brick façade and 
improved floor plan.   
 
Mr. Boeske further stated if the building was not replaced, they would need to replace the AC 
systems, which are failing.  
 
Total capital expenditures for the Activity Center totaled $1,278,000.00 
 
 
 
 



Minutes 08-08-2016 

BENDER PERFORMING ARTS CENTER 
Ms. Phillips stated the capital expenditures for the Performing Arts Center are left over from the 
current year’s budget.   
 
Mr. Funderburk asked what would be improved.  Ms. Phillips stated she believed the parking lot was 
to be extended as well as a sign for the facility.   
 
Total capital expenditures for the Performing Arts Center totaled $135,750.00 
 
WATER DEPARTMENT 
Mr. Boeske stated that the Water Department budget included a $3,000,000 transfer out to the 
Capital Projects Fund.  Mr. Boeske noted the capital expenditures included a new truck to be split 
between water and wastewater, automatic flushing valves, booster pumps at well number six and a 
new concrete drive and drainage improvements at well number six.  
 
Mr. Brock noted the flushing valves will assist in the monthly flush of fire hydrants as required by 
TCEQ and will allow for the valves to operate at night so as to not impact water pressure and save 
on overtime costs.   
 
Total capital expenditures for the Water Department totaled $132,500.00 
 
SEWER DEPARTMENT 
Mr. Boeske stated that capital expenditures for the Sewer Department included new automatic 
valves on the aeration basins, an alternative pump at the Wilson Road lift station, the waste water 
portion of the new truck being split with the Water Department, conversion of four lift station’s 
discharge piping from below ground to above ground and adding the J&L Ranchland and Humble 
Place lift stations to the SCADA system. 
 
Total capital expenditures for the Wastewater Department totaled $212,500.00  
 
SPECIAL REVENUE (HOT) 
Mr. Boeske stated that the museum needs a new roof as well as new flooring on the interior at a 
cost of $55,000.00. 
 
Mayor Aaron asked about the computer line item for the museum.  Ms. Phillips stated that there is a 
server rack and network connections at the museum and so they share in that cost.   
 
SPECIAL REVENUE (RED LIGHT CAMERA/TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT) 
Mr Boeske stated that the capital expenditures from the Red Light Camera / Traffic Enforcement 
fund included new office equipment, a fire/burglar alarm system and property improvements 
totaling $30,800.00.  
 
Mr. Boeske also stated that ARKK Engineers have been looking at various intersection improvements 
that were recently completed to pull out the costs that could utilize Red Light Camera funds to 
reimburse those expenses.   
 
Ms. Phillips noted that the Red Light Camera program was operating with flat revenue vs. 
expenditures at this point.   



Minutes 08-08-2016 

Capital Projects Fund 
Mr. Boeske noted the major capital projects that are already underway or anticipated for the next 
year including the concrete and asphalt pavement project phases I and II, sewer rehab phase V, the 
Townsen Boulevard improvement and the one million gallon elevated storage tank totaling 
$19,148,656.79.  
 
Certificates of Obligation 
Ms. Phillips stated that the bond schedule will be left is at this point, however she did recommend 
consideration to refinance the bonds which could save the city about $500,000.00 with a lower 
interest rate.  Mayor Aaron agreed that it sounded like a good idea.  Ms. Phillips noted that 
refinancing would likely not require further action.   
 

Mr. Boeske noted that the budget did tap into the fund reserve for some of the city’s capital 
expenditures but that it was also based upon the assumption of flat revenues.   
 
Ms. Phillips noted that there are currently 19 vacant positions that have largely gone unfilled for quite 
some time despite our best efforts to fill them which leaves about $500,000 as a potential cushion.  Mr. 
Boeske noted that it was important to point out that we would not be starting day one of the new year 
at max budget.   
 
Ms. Phillips noted that comparative to other cities throughout the county, we were fairing slightly better 
as they are experiencing revenue declines up to 6%. 
 
Mr. Curry asked if the five vacancies within the Police Department were due to not being able to find 
qualified people.  Chief Dawes stated that there have been some retirements and resignations but that 
finding qualified people continued to be a challenge.   
 
Mayor Aaron asked if the Fire Department was still down on personnel.  Chief Outlaw stated that they 
were fully staffed.   
 
Mayor Aaron thanked all of the departments for putting the budget together and being realistic with 
their expectations while recognizing the constraints the city is currently facing on the revenue side.   
 
There being no further business before the City Council, Mayor Aaron adjourned the Special Meeting of 
the City Council at 10:29 A.M. on Monday, August 8, 2016.   

 
    
             

       Merle Aaron 
       Mayor 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
       
 Jason Stuebe 
 City Secretary 



 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

8-25-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #3B 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Humble
Balance on Deposit, All Funds
For the Month of July 2016

General Fund:

Fiscal YTD 
Earnings

Balance as of 
07/31/2016

Cash 434.04$            5,155,858.26$         

Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 74,938.26         5,529,833.05           

Cash - METRO 802.12              11,196,477.46         

Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs - METRO 49,040.11         5,885,994.39           

Total 125,214.53       27,768,163.16         

Water & Sewer Operating Fund:
Cash -                    9,989,116.97           

Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 26,428.29         2,523,592.49           

Total 26,428.29         12,512,709.46         

Photo Traffic Safety Fund:
Cash 170.37              2,803,935.75           

Brokerage CDs 2,016.44           501,082.00              

Total 2,186.81           3,305,017.75           

Hotel Tax Fund:
Cash -                    1,027,852.39           

Total -                    1,027,852.39           

Capital Projects Fund:
TexStar- Water Well Construction 9.79                  4,165.90                  

Brokerage CDs- Water Well Construction 578.41              -                           

Total 588.20              4,165.90                  

Sewer Plant Construction Fund:
Cash -                    598,480.41              

Brokerage CDs 525.21              -                           

Total 525.21              598,480.41              

Total All Funds:
Cash 1,406.53           30,771,721.24         

TexStar 9.79                  4,165.90                  

Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 153,526.72       14,440,501.93         

Total 154,943.04$    45,216,389.07$       



 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

8-25-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #3C 

 

CURRENT INVOICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECKS

Water & Sewer Special Red Light Beautification Special 

Date General Fund Operating Fund Revenue Camera Projects TOTAL

7/20/2016 100.00$                   100.00$                    

7/22/2016 563.18                     563.18$                    
7/29/2016 159,447.70              147,555.97                   3,244.84                48,292.42           358,540.93$             
7/29/2016 793.00                     793.00$                    

160,903.88$           147,555.97$                3,244.84$             48,292.42$         -$                     -$                         359,997.11$             

MAY PURCHASE CARDS

139,431.20$       48,129.36$             173.14$            2,497.66$       190,231.36$        















Abair, James 5/3/2016 5/5/2016 Teex 979 458 6903 300

Abair, James 5/3/2016 5/5/2016 Teex 979 458 6903 350

650

Alexander, Joe 5/19/2016 5/20/2016 Ram Products Ltd 236.84

Alexander, Joe 5/4/2016 5/5/2016 Ram Products Ltd 373.08

Alexander, Joe 5/4/2016 5/5/2016 Ram Products Ltd 133.87

743.79

Babineaux, Kathy 5/25/2016 5/26/2016 Snowflake Donuts 22.75

Babineaux, Kathy 5/24/2016 5/25/2016 Shirleys Town Car Serv 60

Babineaux, Kathy 5/23/2016 5/24/2016 Snowflake Donuts 20.51

Babineaux, Kathy 5/19/2016 5/20/2016 Snowflake Donuts 42.79

Babineaux, Kathy 5/18/2016 5/19/2016 Snowflake Donuts 43.44

Babineaux, Kathy 5/17/2016 5/19/2016 Houston Human 00 Of 00 50

Babineaux, Kathy 5/17/2016 5/19/2016 Houston Human 00 Of 00 100

Babineaux, Kathy 5/12/2016 5/13/2016 Kroger #190 41.81

Babineaux, Kathy 5/9/2016 5/10/2016 Academy Sports #21 33.96

Babineaux, Kathy 5/5/2016 5/6/2016 Hot Shot Delivery 27.9

Babineaux, Kathy 5/4/2016 5/5/2016 Office Depot #262 10.98

Babineaux, Kathy 5/2/2016 5/3/2016 Pln Hotel-Book-Online 314.32

768.46

Battenfield, Kris 5/12/2016 5/16/2016 Star Cleaners 20.56

Baucom, Billy 5/23/2016 5/25/2016 The Home Depot 576 53.02

Blake, Scott 5/24/2016 5/27/2016 Teex 979 458 6903 300

Blake, Scott 5/24/2016 5/26/2016 Fire Protection Pub-We 81.03

381.03

Boeske, W 5/19/2016 5/20/2016 Noyolas Mexican Restau 51.21

Boeske, W 5/18/2016 5/19/2016 Mister Car Wash #9 Qps 32.99

84.2

Bradshaw, Melinda 5/9/2016 5/10/2016 In  Aeroclave, Llc 15598

Brown, Damian 5/11/2016 5/12/2016 Red The Uniform Tailor 138.75

Burt, Jack 5/2/2016 5/3/2016 Stalker Radar 2422.92

Campbell, Jason 5/26/2016 5/30/2016 The Home Depot 576 109.72

Campbell, Jason 5/18/2016 5/19/2016 Tceq Epayment 111

Campbell, Jason 5/10/2016 5/10/2016 Dx Service 1430.96

Campbell, Jason 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 The Home Depot 576 69.35

1721.03

Cantu, Stephen 5/27/2016 5/30/2016 Ferrara Fire Apparatus 2030

Cantu, Stephen 5/11/2016 5/12/2016 Autozone #1472 46.24

Cantu, Stephen 5/11/2016 5/12/2016 In  Metro Fire Apparat 410

Cantu, Stephen 5/5/2016 5/6/2016 Nc Eagle Services 1576.73

Cantu, Stephen 5/2/2016 5/3/2016 Oreilly Auto  00004192 26.99

4089.96

Chambers, Vera 5/23/2016 5/23/2016 Comcast Of Houston 17.57

Chambers, Vera 5/18/2016 5/20/2016 Tap Publishing Company 83.95

Chambers, Vera 5/12/2016 5/16/2016 Publicdata.Com 85

Chambers, Vera 5/9/2016 5/10/2016 Usps 48419095521403753 18.8

Chambers, Vera 5/3/2016 5/4/2016 Quill Corporation 219.29

424.61

Coats, Carolyn 2/24/2016 5/13/2016 Fraud-Circle K 01944 -4.5

Coats, Carolyn 2/24/2016 5/13/2016 Fraud-Mcdonald'S F21225 -17.34

Coats, Carolyn 2/23/2016 5/13/2016 Fraud-Circle K 00811 -7.76



Coats, Carolyn 2/22/2016 5/13/2016 Fraud-Circle K # 03484 -2.89

Coats, Carolyn 2/22/2016 5/13/2016 Fraud-Circle K 03391 -2.95

-35.44

Coombs, Clint 5/23/2016 5/24/2016 Fastenal Company01 5.31

Coombs, Clint 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 The Home Depot 576 22.58

27.89

Cuellar, Angel 5/12/2016 5/13/2016 Direct Grass Services 29.4

Cuellar, Angel 5/11/2016 5/16/2016 M D N Enterprises 375.8

Cuellar, Angel 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 Direct Grass Services 24.5

429.7

Culp, Joseph 5/3/2016 5/5/2016 Teex 979 458 6903 350

Diaz, Theresa 5/27/2016 5/30/2016 Abc Home And Commercia 128.75

Elliott, Sandra 5/18/2016 5/19/2016 Kroger #318 30.72

Elliott, Sandra 5/3/2016 5/5/2016 Lexisnexis Risk Dat 131.75

Elliott, Sandra 5/1/2016 5/2/2016 Ds Services Standard C 96.65

259.12

Emerson, Kevin 5/24/2016 5/26/2016 Encore Industrial Prod 776.26

Fillmore, Steve 5/29/2016 5/30/2016 Academy Sports #21 276.96

Fillmore, Steve 5/28/2016 5/30/2016 Academy Sports #21 44.97

Fillmore, Steve 5/27/2016 5/30/2016 Iws Gas And Supply Of 83.09

Fillmore, Steve 5/26/2016 5/26/2016 Auto Truck Toys Com 179.95

Fillmore, Steve 5/23/2016 5/25/2016 The Home Depot 576 7.87

Fillmore, Steve 5/23/2016 5/25/2016 The Home Depot 576 8.49

Fillmore, Steve 5/20/2016 5/23/2016 Auto Truck Toys Com 359.9

Fillmore, Steve 5/19/2016 5/20/2016 Besco Electric Supply 649.41

Fillmore, Steve 5/18/2016 5/20/2016 Northern Tool Equip Tx 35.96

Fillmore, Steve 5/17/2016 5/19/2016 Northern Tool Equip Tx 328.91

Fillmore, Steve 5/17/2016 5/19/2016 The Home Depot 576 130.39

Fillmore, Steve 5/16/2016 5/17/2016 Mccauley Lumber Compan 78.33

Fillmore, Steve 5/11/2016 5/12/2016 Northern Tool Equip Tx 1199.97

Fillmore, Steve 5/11/2016 5/13/2016 The Home Depot 576 59.56

Fillmore, Steve 5/10/2016 5/11/2016 Moore Supply Company 237.89

Fillmore, Steve 5/9/2016 5/11/2016 Texan Truck Accessorie 400

Fillmore, Steve 5/2/2016 5/4/2016 The Home Depot 576 6.9

4088.55

Fleming, William 5/26/2016 5/27/2016 Academy Sports #21 11.99

Fleming, William 5/25/2016 5/26/2016 Jimmy Johns - 1822 -16.27

Fleming, William 5/24/2016 5/25/2016 Jimmy Johns - 1822 205.3

Fleming, William 5/24/2016 5/25/2016 Jimmy Johns - 1822 8.17

Fleming, William 5/24/2016 5/24/2016 Auto Body Toolmart 107.77

Fleming, William 5/24/2016 5/26/2016 Shipley Donuts     Qps 23.37

Fleming, William 5/23/2016 5/25/2016 Shipley Donuts     Qps 23.57

Fleming, William 5/20/2016 5/23/2016 Ferrara Fire Apparatus 1229.6

Fleming, William 5/19/2016 5/20/2016 Office Depot #262 22.99

Fleming, William 5/19/2016 5/23/2016 Astro Lock And Safe 15

Fleming, William 5/18/2016 5/19/2016 Minuteman Press 120.16

Fleming, William 5/18/2016 5/19/2016 Minuteman Press 39

Fleming, William 5/18/2016 5/18/2016 Mass Group Inc 1480.59

Fleming, William 5/16/2016 5/17/2016 Sq  Key Maps, Inc/C 719.1

Fleming, William 5/16/2016 5/18/2016 Paul Conway Shields In 490.4

Fleming, William 5/13/2016 5/16/2016 Ludlum Measurements, I 4206.2

Fleming, William 5/12/2016 5/16/2016 Sign Mart Of Humble 5

Fleming, William 5/11/2016 5/12/2016 Ferrara Fire Apparatus 2177.4

Fleming, William 5/10/2016 5/12/2016 Dooley Tackaberry 37.5

Fleming, William 5/10/2016 5/12/2016 Dooley Tackaberry 3564.6

Fleming, William 5/9/2016 5/10/2016 Eastcoastre 204.76



Fleming, William 5/9/2016 5/11/2016 The Home Depot 576 53.65

Fleming, William 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 Municip Emerg/Lawmen 112.5

Fleming, William 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 Ace Mart Restaurant Su 14.7

Fleming, William 5/3/2016 5/4/2016 Sigtronics Corp 43.52

Fleming, William 5/2/2016 5/4/2016 The Home Depot 576 29.4

Fleming, William 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 Oreilly Auto  00004192 4.98

Fleming, William 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 Dooley Tackaberry 83.2

Fleming, William 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 Task Force Tips Inc 80.62

15098.77

Flores, Teodulo 5/11/2016 5/16/2016 M D N Enterprises 1532

Flynt, Michael 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 Palais Royal #245 212.95

Flynt, Michael 5/4/2016 5/5/2016 Autozone #1472 14.48

227.43

Forbes, Steve 5/25/2016 5/26/2016 Harbor Freight Tools 4 2.99

Forbes, Steve 5/25/2016 5/27/2016 The Home Depot 576 93.4

Forbes, Steve 5/11/2016 5/12/2016 Best Buy      00002550 738.68

Forbes, Steve 5/11/2016 5/12/2016 B&H Photo, 800-606-69 67.9

Forbes, Steve 5/3/2016 5/4/2016 American Screen Graphi 17

Forbes, Steve 5/3/2016 5/4/2016 Mister Car Wash #9 Qps 7

Forbes, Steve 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 The Home Depot 576 25.22

Forbes, Steve 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 The Home Depot 576 32.08

Forbes, Steve 4/28/2016 5/2/2016 Hobby-Lobby #0160 149.88

1134.15

Franks, Joe 5/7/2016 5/9/2016 Motorola, Inc. - Onlin 475.21

Ganyo, Mark 5/19/2016 5/23/2016 Bound Tree Medical Llc 2600.98

Ganyo, Mark 5/16/2016 5/23/2016 Bound Tree Medical Llc 46.76

Ganyo, Mark 5/13/2016 5/18/2016 Bound Tree Medical Llc 1676.75

Ganyo, Mark 5/10/2016 5/12/2016 Bound Tree Medical Llc 42.45

Ganyo, Mark 5/10/2016 5/12/2016 Bound Tree Medical Llc 454.58

Ganyo, Mark 5/10/2016 5/13/2016 Bound Tree Medical Llc 23.45

4844.97

Gauntt, Aaron 5/2/2016 5/3/2016 Best Western Premiere 232.64

Gauntt, Aaron 4/29/2016 5/3/2016 Fish Daddy'S College S 30

262.64

Gill, Patricia 5/23/2016 5/24/2016 Great Southwest Paper 3674.55

Golden, Jeremy 5/21/2016 5/23/2016 Shipley Donuts     Qps 15.58

Green, Christine 5/25/2016 5/25/2016 Dallas Childrens Advoc 495

Green, Christine 5/9/2016 5/11/2016 Los Cucos Mexican Cafe -57.71

Green, Christine 5/5/2016 5/6/2016 Los Cucos Mexican Cafe 837.21

1274.5

Grimes, Charlie 5/27/2016 5/30/2016 Elliott Electric Suppl 300

Grimes, Charlie 5/25/2016 5/27/2016 Johnson Supply 14 Sl 249.92

Grimes, Charlie 5/19/2016 5/20/2016 Ww Grainger 77.56

Grimes, Charlie 5/18/2016 5/20/2016 The Home Depot 576 118.64

Grimes, Charlie 5/10/2016 5/11/2016 Ferguson Waterworks #2 130.14

Grimes, Charlie 5/10/2016 5/11/2016 Ferguson Waterworks #2 21.69

897.95

Guevara, Mari 5/23/2016 5/24/2016 Kroger #190 30.8

Guevara, Mari 5/23/2016 5/24/2016 Dollar Tree 89

Guevara, Mari 5/20/2016 5/23/2016 Minuteman Press 29

Guevara, Mari 5/17/2016 5/18/2016 Dollar Tree 4

Guevara, Mari 5/16/2016 5/17/2016 Best Buy      00002550 86.98

Guevara, Mari 5/11/2016 5/12/2016 Kroger #190 20.47



Guevara, Mari 5/9/2016 5/11/2016 Party City 0175 35.88

Guevara, Mari 5/4/2016 5/5/2016 Office Depot #262 120.98

Guevara, Mari 5/3/2016 5/4/2016 Kroger #190 13.67

Guevara, Mari 5/3/2016 5/5/2016 Party City 0175 8.99

Guevara, Mari 5/2/2016 5/3/2016 Kroger #190 27.48

Guevara, Mari 5/2/2016 5/3/2016 Kroger #190 14.23

Guevara, Mari 5/2/2016 5/4/2016 Party City 0175 7.98

489.46

Gunn, Kevin 5/24/2016 5/25/2016 Ferguson Ent #2725 33.47

Gunn, Kevin 5/12/2016 5/13/2016 Ferguson Ent #2725 45.06

Gunn, Kevin 5/10/2016 5/11/2016 Ferguson Ent #2725 11.94

Gunn, Kevin 5/3/2016 5/4/2016 Ferguson Ent #2725 178.2

268.67

Hammock, James 5/25/2016 5/26/2016 Amazon.Com Amzn.Com/Bi 24.35

Hammock, James 5/25/2016 5/26/2016 Amazon.Com Amzn.Com/Bi 24.35

Hammock, James 5/25/2016 5/26/2016 Amazon.Com 24.35

Hammock, James 5/25/2016 5/26/2016 Amazon.Com 24.35

Hammock, James 5/14/2016 5/16/2016 Amazon Mktplace Pmts 14.36

Hammock, James 5/12/2016 5/16/2016 Bike Werks 19.98

Hammock, James 5/2/2016 5/3/2016 Meyers Elgin Smokehous 28.64

Hammock, James 5/2/2016 5/3/2016 Buc-Ee'S #18 43.6

Hammock, James 5/2/2016 5/4/2016 Doubletree Suites Astn 193.14

397.12

Hogan, Betty 5/20/2016 5/23/2016 Helens Humble Flower 314

Hogan, Betty 5/5/2016 5/6/2016 Tin Roof Bbq 2423.75

Hogan, Betty 5/2/2016 5/3/2016 Helens Humble Flower 200

2937.75

Hosler, Thomas 5/26/2016 5/27/2016 Sq  William Crawford I 1500

Hosler, Thomas 5/26/2016 5/30/2016 Hach Company 137.13

Hosler, Thomas 5/24/2016 5/25/2016 Waukesha-Pearce Housto 1308.76

Hosler, Thomas 5/23/2016 5/25/2016 The Home Depot 576 217.47

Hosler, Thomas 5/20/2016 5/20/2016 Www.Northernsafety.Com 360

Hosler, Thomas 5/19/2016 5/23/2016 Hach Company 776

Hosler, Thomas 5/18/2016 5/19/2016 Sq  William Crawford I 4500

Hosler, Thomas 5/18/2016 5/19/2016 Ww Grainger 102

Hosler, Thomas 5/17/2016 5/18/2016 Sq  James@Sipesinstrum 2722

Hosler, Thomas 5/12/2016 5/23/2016 Ww Grainger -518.94

Hosler, Thomas 5/12/2016 5/13/2016 Competitive Choice Inc 260

Hosler, Thomas 5/11/2016 5/18/2016 Hach Company 86.52

Hosler, Thomas 5/10/2016 5/11/2016 Jaguar Fueling Service 6067.5

Hosler, Thomas 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 Ww Grainger 888.94

Hosler, Thomas 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 The Home Depot 576 227.7

Hosler, Thomas 5/5/2016 5/6/2016 Officemax/Officedepot6 561.97

Hosler, Thomas 5/5/2016 5/6/2016 Jaguar Fueling Service 207

Hosler, Thomas 5/4/2016 5/5/2016 American Patriot Indus 1299.32

Hosler, Thomas 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 Waukesha-Pearce Housto 1257.3

21960.67

Hottman, Adam 5/26/2016 5/30/2016 Bound Tree Medical Llc 18.6

Hottman, Adam 5/22/2016 5/25/2016 Bound Tree Medical Llc 369.45

Hottman, Adam 5/20/2016 5/23/2016 Bound Tree Medical Llc 113.45

Hottman, Adam 5/17/2016 5/23/2016 Bound Tree Medical Llc 46.76

Hottman, Adam 5/16/2016 5/19/2016 Bound Tree Medical Llc 493.86

Hottman, Adam 5/4/2016 5/9/2016 Bound Tree Medical Llc 1222.4

Hottman, Adam 5/3/2016 5/5/2016 Bound Tree Medical Llc 128.23

Hottman, Adam 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 Bound Tree Medical Llc 358.41

Hottman, Adam 4/28/2016 5/2/2016 Bound Tree Medical Llc 21.79

2772.95

Johnson Iii, Louis 5/30/2016 5/31/2016 Popeye'S #2182 43.25



Johnson Iii, Louis 5/25/2016 5/26/2016 Aqualsol Controllers I 234.86

Johnson Iii, Louis 5/4/2016 5/5/2016 Aqualsol Controllers I 126.62

404.73

Johnson, Dolan 5/8/2016 5/9/2016 Dshs Regulatory Pr 96

Johnson, Dolan 5/2/2016 5/3/2016 Autozone #1472 7.99

103.99

Kellar, Chancey 5/12/2016 5/16/2016 The Home Depot 576 7.16

Kellar, Chancey 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 The Home Depot 576 56.7

63.86

Killian, Elanna 5/23/2016 5/24/2016 Edible Arrangements 39 45

Killian, Elanna 5/16/2016 5/17/2016 Auto Renewal Stick 6

Killian, Elanna 5/16/2016 5/17/2016 Harris Cnty Vehreg 39

Killian, Elanna 5/13/2016 5/16/2016 Big Lots Stores - #419 25

Killian, Elanna 5/12/2016 5/13/2016 Kroger #190 30.44

Killian, Elanna 5/12/2016 5/16/2016 Party City 0175 15.95

Killian, Elanna 5/10/2016 5/12/2016 Yummy Tummy Pastries 110

Killian, Elanna 5/10/2016 5/12/2016 Party City 25.65

Killian, Elanna 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 Ctyclk R Property 260

Killian, Elanna 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 Ctyclk P Records 100

657.04

Killion, Ryan 5/26/2016 5/27/2016 Oreilly Auto  00004192 45.82

Killion, Ryan 5/26/2016 5/27/2016 Oreilly Auto  00004192 22.91

Killion, Ryan 5/10/2016 5/10/2016 Can Canonbussol Cbs 120

Killion, Ryan 5/10/2016 5/11/2016 Beta Technology Inc 239.96

Killion, Ryan 5/5/2016 5/9/2016 The Home Depot 576 26.66

Killion, Ryan 5/4/2016 5/5/2016 S  J Storage Llc 120

575.35

Lee, Daniel 5/23/2016 5/25/2016 The Home Depot 576 7.87

Legoudes, Melissa 5/28/2016 5/30/2016 Office Depot #1127 44.49

Legoudes, Melissa 5/28/2016 5/30/2016 Office Depot #1127 24.29

Legoudes, Melissa 5/27/2016 5/30/2016 Air Delights Inc 219.89

Legoudes, Melissa 5/26/2016 5/27/2016 Office Depot #262 61.53

Legoudes, Melissa 5/26/2016 5/30/2016 Astro Lock And Safe 22

Legoudes, Melissa 5/23/2016 5/24/2016 Office Depot #1127 92.01

Legoudes, Melissa 5/21/2016 5/23/2016 Office Depot #1127 17.99

Legoudes, Melissa 5/20/2016 5/23/2016 Rosewood Flower Shop 58.5

Legoudes, Melissa 5/19/2016 5/20/2016 Office Depot #1127 13.09

Legoudes, Melissa 5/19/2016 5/20/2016 Office Depot #1127 94.04

Legoudes, Melissa 5/19/2016 5/20/2016 Office Depot #1127 104.85

Legoudes, Melissa 5/17/2016 5/19/2016 Cuevas Distribution 522

Legoudes, Melissa 5/17/2016 5/18/2016 Rosewood Flower Shop 60

Legoudes, Melissa 5/12/2016 5/13/2016 Office Depot #1127 16.19

Legoudes, Melissa 5/9/2016 5/10/2016 Michaels Stores 5813 6.59

Legoudes, Melissa 5/7/2016 5/9/2016 Office Depot #1127 44.49

Legoudes, Melissa 5/5/2016 5/6/2016 Kroger #190 39.27

Legoudes, Melissa 5/5/2016 5/6/2016 Kroger #190 83.5

Legoudes, Melissa 5/5/2016 5/9/2016 Party City 0175 40

Legoudes, Melissa 5/5/2016 5/6/2016 Lindys Country Cupbo 133

Legoudes, Melissa 5/4/2016 5/5/2016 Office Depot #1127 299.98

Legoudes, Melissa 5/3/2016 5/4/2016 Office Depot #262 63.92

Legoudes, Melissa 5/3/2016 5/4/2016 Walgreens #0496 14.39

Legoudes, Melissa 5/3/2016 5/4/2016 Pospaper.Com 557.1

Legoudes, Melissa 5/3/2016 5/5/2016 Lexisnexis Risk Dat 379.9

Legoudes, Melissa 5/2/2016 5/3/2016 Wm Supercenter #1837 17.74

Legoudes, Melissa 5/2/2016 5/3/2016 Sq  The Forgotten P 1250

Legoudes, Melissa 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 Cuevas Distribution In 522

4802.75



Legoudes, Michael 5/25/2016 5/26/2016 Jones & Bartlett Learn 499

Legoudes, Michael 5/25/2016 5/26/2016 Stericycle 75.37

Legoudes, Michael 5/23/2016 5/24/2016 Frazer Ltd 265.56

Legoudes, Michael 5/21/2016 5/23/2016 Apco International Inc 30

Legoudes, Michael 5/18/2016 5/20/2016 Star Cleaners 21

Legoudes, Michael 5/17/2016 5/18/2016 Frazer Ltd 265.56

Legoudes, Michael 5/5/2016 5/6/2016 Jones & Bartlett Learn 499

Legoudes, Michael 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 Paypal  Jonpuryear 2600

Legoudes, Michael 4/28/2016 5/2/2016 The Home Depot 576 24.23

4279.72

Lewis, Morgan 5/11/2016 5/12/2016 Www.Zieis.Com 283.97

Lewis, Morgan 4/30/2016 5/2/2016 Tractor-Supply-Co #040 23.96

307.93

Lightyear, Arik 5/25/2016 5/27/2016 Teex 979 458 6903 315

Love, Kenneth 5/26/2016 5/26/2016 Galls 945

Love, Kenneth 5/17/2016 5/18/2016 Red The Uniform Tailor 438

Love, Kenneth 5/11/2016 5/12/2016 Cg Police Supply 626.78

Love, Kenneth 5/11/2016 5/12/2016 Cg Police Supply 235.2

Love, Kenneth 5/10/2016 5/11/2016 Red The Uniform Tailor 36.55

Love, Kenneth 5/10/2016 5/11/2016 Red The Uniform Tailor 97.5

Love, Kenneth 5/10/2016 5/11/2016 Red The Uniform Tailor 153.5

Love, Kenneth 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 Red The Uniform Tailor 139

Love, Kenneth 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 Red The Uniform Tailor 541.95

3213.48

Martin, Mark 5/20/2016 5/23/2016 Lady Liberty Flag And 530.64

Martin, Mark 5/20/2016 5/23/2016 The Home Depot 576 79.97

Martin, Mark 5/10/2016 5/11/2016 Lady Liberty Flag And 528.4

Martin, Mark 5/4/2016 5/6/2016 The Home Depot 576 53.76

Martin, Mark 5/2/2016 5/4/2016 Sign Mart Of Humble 30

1222.77

Martinez, Fidel 5/11/2016 5/12/2016 Best Buy      00002550 29.99

Martinez, Fidel 5/10/2016 5/11/2016 Best Buy      00013979 119.99

149.98

Maxwell, James 5/19/2016 5/20/2016 Fort Bend Services Inc 1473

Maxwell, James 5/3/2016 5/4/2016 Tceq Epayment 111

Maxwell, James 5/2/2016 5/3/2016 Fort Bend Services Inc 1473

3057

May, Brian 5/23/2016 5/24/2016 Papa John'S #02749 48.92

May, Brian 5/21/2016 5/23/2016 Galls 171

May, Brian 5/14/2016 5/16/2016 Galls 1356.3

1576.22

Mccaa, George 5/25/2016 5/27/2016 The Home Depot 576 24.98

Mccaa, George 5/25/2016 5/27/2016 The Home Depot 576 8.47

Mccaa, George 5/25/2016 5/27/2016 Circle Saw Builders Su 22.51

Mccaa, George 5/23/2016 5/25/2016 The Home Depot 576 31.88

Mccaa, George 5/12/2016 5/16/2016 The Home Depot 576 53.6

Mccaa, George 5/12/2016 5/16/2016 The Home Depot 576 19.94

Mccaa, George 5/4/2016 5/5/2016 Century A/C Supply 13.55

Mccaa, George 5/4/2016 5/6/2016 The Home Depot 576 19.51

Mccaa, George 5/2/2016 5/4/2016 The Home Depot 576 29.98

Mccaa, George 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 The Home Depot 576 26.41

Mccaa, George 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 The Home Depot 576 4.98

255.81

Meadows, Gordon 5/4/2016 5/6/2016 Sign Mart Of Humble 460

Meadows, Gordon 5/4/2016 5/6/2016 Sign Mart Of Humble 570



1030

Michaud, Paula 5/28/2016 5/30/2016 Vzwrlss My Vz Vb P 7612.76

Michaud, Paula 5/24/2016 5/24/2016 Comcast Houston Cs 1x 94.7

Michaud, Paula 5/20/2016 5/23/2016 Republic Services Tras 580.56

Michaud, Paula 5/20/2016 5/20/2016 Centurylink/Speedpay 6398.49

Michaud, Paula 5/17/2016 5/17/2016 Comcast Houston Cs 1x 312.63

Michaud, Paula 5/16/2016 5/17/2016 Republic Services Tras 77.73

Michaud, Paula 5/16/2016 5/17/2016 Republic Services Tras 145.55

Michaud, Paula 5/16/2016 5/17/2016 Republic Services Tras 383.18

Michaud, Paula 5/16/2016 5/17/2016 Republic Services Tras 732

Michaud, Paula 5/16/2016 5/17/2016 Waste Mgmt Wm Ezpay 9553.2

Michaud, Paula 5/16/2016 5/17/2016 Fsi Centerpoint Energy 29.82

Michaud, Paula 5/16/2016 5/17/2016 Fsi Centerpoint Energy 26.23

Michaud, Paula 5/10/2016 5/11/2016 Republic Services Tras 54.84

Michaud, Paula 5/10/2016 5/11/2016 Waste Mgmt Wm Ezpay 594.86

Michaud, Paula 5/10/2016 5/10/2016 Comcast Houston Cs 1x 150.64

Michaud, Paula 5/5/2016 5/6/2016 Republic Services Tras 2369.66

Michaud, Paula 5/5/2016 5/5/2016 Centurylink/Speedpay 118.71

Michaud, Paula 5/5/2016 5/5/2016 Centurylink/Speedpay 64.08

Michaud, Paula 5/5/2016 5/5/2016 Centurylink/Speedpay 269.57

Michaud, Paula 5/4/2016 5/5/2016 Fsi Centerpoint Energy 28.77

Michaud, Paula 5/4/2016 5/5/2016 Fsi Centerpoint Energy 28.93

Michaud, Paula 5/3/2016 5/3/2016 Comcast Houston Cs 1x 199.44

Michaud, Paula 5/3/2016 5/3/2016 Comcast Houston Cs 1x 125.51

Michaud, Paula 5/2/2016 5/2/2016 Comcast Of Houston 199.44

30151.3

Miller, Craig 5/21/2016 5/23/2016 Macy'S East #716 195.04

Miller, Thomas 5/2/2016 5/3/2016 Best Western Premiere 232.64

Miller, Thomas 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 Bjs Restaurants 513 51.33

283.97

Mittag, Jeremy 5/28/2016 5/30/2016 Fox Family Pools 319.6

Mittag, Jeremy 5/16/2016 5/18/2016 Shoptrn Jade Swimwear 495

Mittag, Jeremy 5/15/2016 5/16/2016 Mister Car Wash #19qps 17

Mittag, Jeremy 5/11/2016 5/12/2016 Great Southwest Paper 1461.7

Mittag, Jeremy 5/9/2016 5/10/2016 American Lifeguard Pro 188.9

Mittag, Jeremy 5/5/2016 5/9/2016 The Home Depot 576 40.04

Mittag, Jeremy 5/4/2016 5/5/2016 Office Depot #262 39.99

Mittag, Jeremy 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 The Home Depot 576 323.17

2885.4

Moore, Sharon 5/5/2016 5/6/2016 Ds Services Standard C 22

Morgan, Cindy 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 Office Depot #1127 53.48

Morgan, Cindy 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 Office Depot #1127 7.27

60.75

Mullins, Mark 5/2/2016 5/3/2016 Best Western Premiere 232.64

Nansel, Michael 5/9/2016 5/11/2016 Dillard'S 780 Deerbroo -4.91

Naquin, Leroy 5/17/2016 5/18/2016 The Scruggs Company -1290

Naquin, Leroy 5/9/2016 5/10/2016 The Scruggs Company 1290

Naquin, Leroy 5/5/2016 5/9/2016 M D N Enterprises 527.96

Naquin, Leroy 5/4/2016 5/5/2016 Ferguson Ent #2725 74.72

Naquin, Leroy 5/4/2016 5/6/2016 M D N Enterprises 272.1

Naquin, Leroy 5/3/2016 5/5/2016 M D N Enterprises 545.44

1420.22

Neeley, William 5/26/2016 5/30/2016 Young S One Stop 895

Neeley, William 5/20/2016 5/23/2016 Industrial Disposal Su 510



Neeley, William 5/19/2016 5/20/2016 Lonestarproducts 158.55

Neeley, William 5/19/2016 5/20/2016 Lonestarproducts -158.55

Neeley, William 5/19/2016 5/20/2016 Lonestarproducts 146.47

Neeley, William 5/13/2016 5/16/2016 Clicks Tire Service In 70

Neeley, William 5/9/2016 5/10/2016 Oreilly Auto  00004192 5.25

Neeley, William 5/5/2016 5/6/2016 Oreilly Auto  00004192 26.18

1652.9

Niemeyer, Eugene 5/20/2016 5/23/2016 Office Depot #1127 40.09

Niemeyer, Eugene 5/20/2016 5/20/2016 Www.Northernsafety.Com 30.28

Niemeyer, Eugene 5/20/2016 5/20/2016 Www.Northernsafety.Com 192.19

Niemeyer, Eugene 5/10/2016 5/11/2016 In  Metro Fire Apparat 4798.6

Niemeyer, Eugene 5/5/2016 5/5/2016 Uline   Ship Supplies 297.82

Niemeyer, Eugene 5/4/2016 5/6/2016 Municip Emerg/Lawmen 769.45

Niemeyer, Eugene 4/28/2016 5/2/2016 The Home Depot 576 29.96

6158.39

Nykaza, James 5/27/2016 5/30/2016 Fry'S Electronics#23 119.98

Nykaza, James 5/25/2016 5/26/2016 The Knox Company 105

Nykaza, James 5/19/2016 5/20/2016 Academy Sports #21 32.98

Nykaza, James 5/17/2016 5/19/2016 The Home Depot 576 18.96

Nykaza, James 5/17/2016 5/19/2016 The Home Depot 576 7.4

Nykaza, James 5/17/2016 5/19/2016 Sign Mart Of Humble 1.2

Nykaza, James 5/17/2016 5/19/2016 Sign Mart Of Humble 1.2

Nykaza, James 5/17/2016 5/19/2016 Sign Mart Of Humble 117.6

Nykaza, James 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 Rock N Rescue 184.25

Nykaza, James 5/4/2016 5/5/2016 Mister Car Wash #19qps 17

Nykaza, James 5/3/2016 5/5/2016 Lexisnexis Risk Dat 95

700.57

Ortiz, Raul 5/16/2016 5/17/2016 Batteries Plus #42 19.95

Ortiz, Raul 5/12/2016 5/16/2016 Star Cleaners 49.9

Ortiz, Raul 5/5/2016 5/9/2016 The Home Depot 576 66.14

135.99

Outlaw, Gary 5/2/2016 5/3/2016 Tx Comm On Fire Pr 174.08

Outlaw, Martha 5/13/2016 5/13/2016 Qdi Quest Diagnostics 143.53

Outlaw, Martha 5/13/2016 5/13/2016 Qdi Quest Diagnostics 50.92

194.45

Pennington, Robert 5/23/2016 5/24/2016 Mister Car Wash #19qps 6

Peters, Richard 5/4/2016 5/5/2016 Office Depot #262 43.47

Peters, Richard 5/2/2016 5/3/2016 Thomson West Tcd 1248

1291.47

Phillips, Aimee 5/20/2016 5/23/2016 Vsn Dotgovregistration 125

Phillips, Aimee 5/20/2016 5/23/2016 Vsn Dotgovregistration 125

Phillips, Aimee 5/20/2016 5/23/2016 Vsn Dotgovregistration 125

Phillips, Aimee 5/7/2016 5/9/2016 Apl  Itunes.Com/Bill 0.99

Phillips, Aimee 5/5/2016 5/9/2016 Harris Co Toll Rd-Rebi 120

Phillips, Aimee 5/3/2016 5/4/2016 Firehouse Subs #11 75

Phillips, Aimee 5/2/2016 5/4/2016 Payflow/Paypal 30

Phillips, Aimee 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 Hctra Violations Csr 144.35

Phillips, Aimee 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 Fort Bend Violations C 1.2

746.54

Pitts, Joshua 5/26/2016 5/30/2016 Small Engine Supply 41.66

Price, Charissa 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 Staples       00118604 62.52

Price, Charissa 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 Staples       00118604 54.95

Price, Charissa 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 Staples       00118323 59.28

Price, Charissa 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 Staples       00118323 54.95



Price, Charissa 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 Staples       00118323 28.95

Price, Charissa 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 Staples       00118323 28.95

Price, Charissa 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 Staples       00119032 63.06

Price, Charissa 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 Staples       00119032 54.95

Price, Charissa 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 Staples       00119032 54.95

Price, Charissa 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 Staples       00119032 54.95

Price, Charissa 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 Shell Oil 57543189005 13.52

Price, Charissa 5/26/2016 5/27/2016 Fredpryor Careertrack 128

659.03

Rhodes, Victoria 5/19/2016 5/20/2016 Office Depot #1079 79.99

Rhodes, Victoria 5/12/2016 5/13/2016 Office Depot #1127 72.87

Rhodes, Victoria 5/12/2016 5/13/2016 Office Depot #1127 28.49

Rhodes, Victoria 5/10/2016 5/11/2016 Office Depot #1127 56.24

Rhodes, Victoria 5/9/2016 5/10/2016 Office Depot #1127 114.69

Rhodes, Victoria 5/7/2016 5/9/2016 Office Depot #1127 54.76

Rhodes, Victoria 5/7/2016 5/9/2016 Office Depot #1127 11.4

Rhodes, Victoria 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 Hobby-Lobby #0160 24.99

443.43

Richard, Dale 5/24/2016 5/30/2016 Hach Company 382.89

Richard, Dale 5/23/2016 5/24/2016 Apl  Itunes.Com/Bill 0.99

Richard, Dale 5/23/2016 5/24/2016 Helens Humble Flower 60

Richard, Dale 5/20/2016 5/23/2016 Lowes #00750 49.99

Richard, Dale 5/13/2016 5/16/2016 Ferguson Waterworks #2 2500

Richard, Dale 5/11/2016 5/12/2016 Moore Supply Company 47.68

Richard, Dale 5/2/2016 5/3/2016 Ferguson Enterprises 2 2664

5705.55

Rodriguez, Jose 5/20/2016 5/23/2016 Shell Oil 57543432801 10.4

Rodriguez, Jose 5/16/2016 5/18/2016 The Home Depot 576 399

Rodriguez, Jose 5/16/2016 5/18/2016 Small Engine Supply 230.97

Rodriguez, Jose 5/12/2016 5/13/2016 Oreilly Auto  00004192 47.99

Rodriguez, Jose 5/12/2016 5/16/2016 Shell Oil 57543432801 10.2

Rodriguez, Jose 5/5/2016 5/9/2016 Shell Oil 57543432801 15.29

713.85

Schultz, Jacob 5/26/2016 5/27/2016 Deerwood A/C & Heating 496

Schultz, Jacob 5/25/2016 5/26/2016 Amazonprime Membership 107.17

Schultz, Jacob 5/24/2016 5/26/2016 The Home Depot 576 -5.19

Schultz, Jacob 5/23/2016 5/24/2016 Office Depot #262 70.98

Schultz, Jacob 5/19/2016 5/19/2016 Amazon Mktplace Pmts 13.74

Schultz, Jacob 5/19/2016 5/19/2016 Amazon Mktplace Pmts 17

Schultz, Jacob 5/18/2016 5/20/2016 The Home Depot 576 22.49

Schultz, Jacob 5/17/2016 5/18/2016 Texas Forklift Inc 2992.04

Schultz, Jacob 5/14/2016 5/16/2016 Uline   Ship Supplies 297.99

Schultz, Jacob 5/13/2016 5/16/2016 Sign Mart Of Humble 1490

Schultz, Jacob 5/11/2016 5/12/2016 Amazon.Com 145

Schultz, Jacob 5/11/2016 5/12/2016 Deerwood A/C & Heating 814

Schultz, Jacob 5/5/2016 5/6/2016 Community Motors 710.29

Schultz, Jacob 5/3/2016 5/4/2016 Ferguson Waterworks #2 78

Schultz, Jacob 5/2/2016 5/3/2016 Ferguson Waterworks #2 1794.44

9043.95

Scott, David 5/26/2016 5/30/2016 Famousfootwear#2192 67.99

Scott, Randy 5/25/2016 5/26/2016 Vitalpet 1 45

Scott, Randy 5/25/2016 5/27/2016 Bugtime Inc 64.47

Scott, Randy 5/25/2016 5/27/2016 The Home Depot 576 242.74

Scott, Randy 5/24/2016 5/26/2016 The Home Depot 576 89.97

Scott, Randy 5/23/2016 5/25/2016 The Home Depot 576 38.91

Scott, Randy 5/23/2016 5/24/2016 Knox Drive Farm And Fe 28

Scott, Randy 5/17/2016 5/18/2016 Vitalpet 1 15

Scott, Randy 5/17/2016 5/18/2016 Tx Dept Agricultur 115.29



Scott, Randy 5/10/2016 5/11/2016 Wal-Mart #1837 258.88

Scott, Randy 5/10/2016 5/11/2016 Knox Drive Farm And Fe 28

Scott, Randy 5/4/2016 5/6/2016 Vitalpet 1 90

Scott, Randy 5/4/2016 5/5/2016 Office Depot #262 71.99

Scott, Randy 5/3/2016 5/5/2016 Vitalpet 1 15

Scott, Randy 5/3/2016 5/5/2016 Vitalpet 1 25.5

1128.75

Stephens, Philisa 5/24/2016 5/25/2016 Spectracom 7940

Stephens, Philisa 5/20/2016 5/23/2016 Cdw Government 325.02

Stephens, Philisa 5/20/2016 5/23/2016 Web Networksolutions 169.94

Stephens, Philisa 5/19/2016 5/20/2016 Cdw Government 157.95

Stephens, Philisa 5/19/2016 5/20/2016 Cdw Government 43.6

Stephens, Philisa 5/13/2016 5/16/2016 Cdw Government 59.22

Stephens, Philisa 5/5/2016 5/6/2016 Www.Newegg.Com 112.63

8808.36

Stuebe, Jason 5/23/2016 5/24/2016 In  Txtreme Promotions 275

Stuebe, Jason 5/20/2016 5/23/2016 Beverly'S Florist 150.94

425.94

Taska, Allison 5/27/2016 5/30/2016 Astro Lock And Safe 150

Taska, Allison 5/17/2016 5/18/2016 Office Depot #262 269.99

Taska, Allison 5/11/2016 5/11/2016 Comcast Of Houston 127.89

Taska, Allison 5/11/2016 5/11/2016 Comcast Of Houston 112.38

660.26

Theis, Kenneth 5/20/2016 5/20/2016 Shsu Web Pay 225

Theis, Kenneth 5/6/2016 5/9/2016 Office Depot #262 62.99

287.99

Thiem, Landon 5/1/2016 5/3/2016 Fuego Tortilla Gri 95.93

Thiem, Landon 4/30/2016 5/2/2016 Abuelos College Statio 207.72

Thiem, Landon 4/29/2016 5/2/2016 Buffalo Wild Wings 062 27.96

331.61

Tworek, John 5/24/2016 5/25/2016 Oreilly Auto  00004192 29.98

Vera, Donnelly 4/30/2016 5/2/2016 Shipley Donuts     Qps 32.66

Villa, Joel 5/28/2016 5/30/2016 Lowes #00750 65.28

Villa, Joel 5/25/2016 5/27/2016 The Home Depot 576 90.77

Villa, Joel 5/23/2016 5/25/2016 Sherwin Williams 70731 164.7

Villa, Joel 5/19/2016 5/23/2016 The Home Depot 576 77.87

Villa, Joel 5/18/2016 5/20/2016 The Home Depot 576 131.04

Villa, Joel 5/18/2016 5/20/2016 The Home Depot 576 73.23

Villa, Joel 5/17/2016 5/19/2016 Sherwin Williams 70731 38.99

Villa, Joel 5/17/2016 5/19/2016 The Home Depot 576 19.78

Villa, Joel 5/16/2016 5/17/2016 Sams Club #6367 147.76

Villa, Joel 5/12/2016 5/16/2016 Sherwin Williams 70722 152.62

Villa, Joel 5/10/2016 5/12/2016 The Home Depot 576 21.21

Villa, Joel 5/5/2016 5/9/2016 Sherwin Williams 70731 88.99

Villa, Joel 5/5/2016 5/9/2016 The Home Depot 576 16.88

Villa, Joel 5/3/2016 5/4/2016 Oreilly Auto  00004192 29.95

Villa, Joel 5/3/2016 5/5/2016 Sherwin Williams 70731 141.91

Villa, Joel 5/2/2016 5/3/2016 Sams Club #6367 47.76

Villa, Joel 4/28/2016 5/2/2016 Sherwin Williams 70731 125.25

Villa, Joel 4/28/2016 5/2/2016 The Home Depot 576 64.38

1498.37

Watkins, Wyatt 5/3/2016 5/4/2016 United    01624909951420 364.2

Williams, Stacy 5/25/2016 5/30/2016 Gulf Atlantic Packagin 129.8



Wisenbaker, Jeffrey 5/19/2016 5/23/2016 The Home Depot 576 14.97

Wisenbaker, Jeffrey 5/11/2016 5/12/2016 Officemax/Officedepot6 74.97

Wisenbaker, Jeffrey 5/11/2016 5/13/2016 The Home Depot 576 14.9

104.84



 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

8-25-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #3D 

 

MONTHLY DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





































































































































 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

8-25-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #3E 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

August 5, 2016 

Number 28 
 

 

Mandatory Local Debt Reporting 
 

House Bill 1378, passed during the 2015 legislative session, requires every city to annually 

report various figures related to the city’s amount of debt. A city can satisfy the reporting 

requirement in one of two ways: (1) compile the requisite debt information in a self-created 

report that is posted to the city’s website; or (2) complete the state comptroller’s online debt 

reporting form and either: (a) upload it to the comptroller’s website; or (b) post to the city’s 

website.  

 

The local debt information required to be in the annual report, whether created by the city or by 

using the comptroller’s form, is as follows:  

 

1. The amount of all authorized debt obligations;  

2. The principal of all outstanding debt obligations;  

3. The principal of each outstanding debt obligation;  

4. The combined principal and interest required to pay all outstanding debt obligations on 

time and in full;  

5. The combined principal and interest required to pay each outstanding debt obligation on 

time and in full;  

6. The amounts required by Nos. 1-5 limited to authorized and outstanding debt obligations 

secured by property taxes, expressed as a total amount and per capita amount;  

7. The following for each debt obligation: (a) the issued and unissued amount; (b) the spent 

and unspent amount; (c) the maturity date; and (d) the stated purpose for which the debt 

obligation was authorized;  

8. The current credit rating given by any nationally recognized credit rating organization to 

debt obligations of the political subdivision; and  

9. Any other information that the political subdivision considers relevant or necessary to 

explain the values.  

 

http://www.legis.state.tx.us/tlodocs/84R/billtext/html/HB01378F.htm
http://www.texastransparency.org/Local_Government/HB1378/
http://www.texastransparency.org/Local_Government/HB1378/


2 
 
 

According to the comptroller’s website, new administrative rules will soon be proposed to 

implement the deadlines for completing the report.  The website indicates that deadlines for 

reporting will be: (1) within 210 days of the end of the city’s fiscal year in 2016; and (2) within 

180 days of the end of the most recently completed fiscal year after 2016.  

 

As cities reach the end of the 2016 budget year, they should seek the assistance of local finance 

officers, and possibly local legal counsel, to interpret the new mandatory reporting. Please 

contact Bill Longley, TML Legislative Counsel, with questions at bill@tml.org or (512) 231-

7400.  

 

 

Another Licensed Carry Lawsuit: 

Attorney General Focuses Sights on Austin 
 

The attorney general’s office has filed a lawsuit against the City of Austin to require licensed 

carry at city hall, even though a municipal court is conducted there.  (A previous edition of the 

Legislative Update reported on a lawsuit filed by Waller County against the leader of Open 

Carry Texas.  The Waller County lawsuit argues that:  (1) the entire courthouse is off-limits to 

licensed carriers; and (2) the attorney general’s office doesn’t have as much enforcement 

authority over local governments as it claims.) 

 

In an apparent tit-for-tat, the attorney general’s office has filed a lawsuit against the City of 

Austin, claiming the opposite.  The Austin city hall houses the city’s “community court.”  

According to its website, the court’s purpose is “to collaboratively address the quality of life 

issues of all residents in the downtown Austin community through the swift, creative sentencing 

of public order offenders.”  The court “seeks to hold people responsible while also offering help 

to change behavior.” 

 

The court is held in city hall.  Because of that, the city, like Waller County, takes the position 

that the entire building is off-limits to license holders carrying 

handguns.  A “no guns” sign (a handgun with a slash through it – 

see photo) is posted on the window, and a guard posted at a metal 

detector provides verbal notice that licensed carry is not allowed. 

 

The attorney general’s lawsuit asks the court to order the city to 

remove its sign and authorize licensed carry in city hall.  It also 

seeks civil penalties from the city.   

 

One of these pending lawsuits should ultimately provide guidance to cities that house municipal 

courtrooms and court offices in multi-use city facilities.   

 
TML member cities may use the material herein for 

any purpose. No other person or entity may 

reproduce, duplicate, or distribute any part of this 

document without the written authorization of the 

Texas Municipal League. 

mailto:bill@tml.org
http://links.govdelivery.com/track?type=click&enid=ZWFzPTEmbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTYwNzI4LjYyMDczNzAxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE2MDcyOC42MjA3MzcwMSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE3MDYyODU1JmVtYWlsaWQ9c2hvdXN0b25AdG1sLm9yZyZ1c2VyaWQ9c2hvdXN0b25AdG1sLm9yZyZmbD0mZXh0cmE9TXVsdGl2YXJpYXRlSWQ9JiYm&&&100&&&https://www.texasattorneygeneral.gov/files/epress/01_-_Plfs-Relators_Orig_Pet_for_Writ_of_Mandamus_and_Civil_Penalties.pdf?cachebuster%3A7=&utm_content=&utm_medium=email&utm_name=&utm_source=govdelivery&utm_term=
http://www.tml.org/legis_updates/lawsuit-licensed-carry-in-court-buildings
http://links.govdelivery.com/track?type=click&enid=ZWFzPTEmbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTYwNzI4LjYyMDczNzAxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE2MDcyOC42MjA3MzcwMSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE3MDYyODU1JmVtYWlsaWQ9c2hvdXN0b25AdG1sLm9yZyZ1c2VyaWQ9c2hvdXN0b25AdG1sLm9yZyZmbD0mZXh0cmE9TXVsdGl2YXJpYXRlSWQ9JiYm&&&100&&&https://www.texasattorneygeneral.gov/files/epress/01_-_Plfs-Relators_Orig_Pet_for_Writ_of_Mandamus_and_Civil_Penalties.pdf?cachebuster%3A7=&utm_content=&utm_medium=email&utm_name=&utm_source=govdelivery&utm_term=


 

 

August 12, 2016 

Number 29 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attorney General Issues Yet Another Licensed Carry Opinion 
 

The attorney general’s office just released Opinion No. KP-0108, its sixth opinion related to 

licensed carry.  It concludes that: (1) nothing prohibits a private entity that is leasing city 

property from posting notice that licensed carry is prohibited on the property; and (2) a licensed 

carrier who does so anyway would not commit the criminal offense of trespass by license holder 

under the Texas Penal Code.    

 

The request for the opinion asked whether a non-profit entity that has offices on land owned by a 

city may restrict the carrying of concealed handguns on the property.  The League has stated that 

the Penal Code provisions allowing a private entity to prohibit licensed carry on its property 

(Section 30.06 for concealed carry and Section 30.07 for open carry) can’t be used to criminally 

enforce the trespass by license holder statute on city-owned property.  That’s because both 

sections provide that “it is an exception to the application of this section that the property on 

which the license holder openly carries the handgun is owned or leased by a governmental 

entity…” 

 

The attorney general’s office agreed with that position. However, the opinion also reviewed a 

new provision in the Government Code (Section 411.209) authorizing the attorney general to 

investigate and sue a state agency or a political subdivision that improperly posts a 30.06 

notice.  It concludes that the new section applies only to state agencies and political subdivisions.  

Thus, the attorney general’s office has no authority to investigate a sign placed by the person or 

entity that is leasing the city property, so long as the city has no control over the placement.  In 

other words, it appears to be a “don’t ask, don’t tell” opinion. 

https://texasattorneygeneral.gov/opinions/opinions/51paxton/op/2016/kp0108.pdf
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/PE/htm/PE.30.htm#30.06
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/PE/htm/PE.30.htm#30.07
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/GV/htm/GV.411.htm#411.209


2 
 
 

 

How can the person or entity that is leasing the city property and chooses to post signs then 

enforce the prohibition?  The criminal trespass statute in the Penal Code (Section 30.05) can’t be 

used to prohibit entry because it provides an affirmative defense if the basis for restricting access 

is that a person is carrying a handgun, so long as that person is licensed to do so.  Because a 

license holder wouldn’t necessarily commit a criminal offense by disregarding a sign in this case, 

the opinion mentions civil trespass, which presumably allows the person or entity to prohibit 

entry. 

 

It’s possible that the recourse of law enforcement responding to a call of an unwelcome licensed 

carrier at the leased property is thus limited to other criminal offenses. 

 

 

Mandatory Local Debt Reporting 
 

House Bill 1378, passed during the 2015 legislative session, requires every city to annually 

report various figures related to the city’s amount of debt. A city can satisfy the reporting 

requirement in one of two ways: (1) compile the requisite debt information in a self-created 

report that is posted to the city’s website; or (2) complete the state comptroller’s online debt 

reporting form and either: (a) upload it to the comptroller’s website; or (b) post to the city’s 

website.  

 

The local debt information required to be in the annual report, whether created by the city or by 

using the comptroller’s form, is as follows:  

 

1. The amount of all authorized debt obligations;  

2. The principal of all outstanding debt obligations;  

3. The principal of each outstanding debt obligation;  

4. The combined principal and interest required to pay all outstanding debt obligations on 

time and in full;  

5. The combined principal and interest required to pay each outstanding debt obligation on 

time and in full;  

6. The amounts required by Nos. 1-5 limited to authorized and outstanding debt obligations 

secured by property taxes, expressed as a total amount and per capita amount;  

7. The following for each debt obligation: (a) the issued and unissued amount; (b) the spent 

and unspent amount; (c) the maturity date; and (d) the stated purpose for which the debt 

obligation was authorized;  

8. The current credit rating given by any nationally recognized credit rating organization to 

debt obligations of the political subdivision; and  

9. Any other information that the political subdivision considers relevant or necessary to 

explain the values.  

 

According to the comptroller’s website, new administrative rules will soon be proposed to 

implement the deadlines for completing the report.  The website indicates that deadlines for 

reporting will be: (1) within 210 days of the end of the city’s fiscal year in 2016; and (2) within 

180 days of the end of the most recently completed fiscal year after 2016.  

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/PE/htm/PE.30.htm#30.05
http://www.legis.state.tx.us/tlodocs/84R/billtext/html/HB01378F.htm
http://www.texastransparency.org/Local_Government/HB1378/
http://www.texastransparency.org/Local_Government/HB1378/


3 
 
 

 

As cities reach the end of the 2016 budget year, they should seek the assistance of local finance 

officers, and possibly local legal counsel, to interpret the new mandatory reporting. Please 

contact Bill Longley, TML Legislative Counsel, with questions at bill@tml.org or (512) 231-

7400.  

 

 

 

TML member cities may use the material herein for 

any purpose. No other person or entity may 

reproduce, duplicate, or distribute any part of this 

document without the written authorization of the 

Texas Municipal League. 

mailto:bill@tml.org


 

 

August 19, 2016 

Number 30 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Court Strikes Down Laredo’s Plastic Bag Ban 
 

Last Wednesday, the San Antonio Court of Appeals issued its opinion in Laredo Merchants 

Association v. City of Laredo.  The court struck down the City of Laredo’s plastic bag ban 

ordinance, concluding that it is preempted by state law. 

 

In 2015, a City of Laredo ordinance designed to “reduce litter from discarded plastic bags” 

became effective. The ordinance makes it unlawful for commercial establishments to provide 

plastic checkout bags to customers.  It was adopted pursuant to a strategic plan aimed at creating 

a “trash-free city.” 

 

The Texas Health and Safety Code prohibits a city from adopting an ordinance, rule, or 

regulation to “prohibit or restrict, for solid waste management purposes, the sale or use of a 

container or package in a manner not authorized by state law...”  The court concluded that the 

city’s ban is clearly and unmistakably preempted by the code because: (1) it was adopted for a 

“solid waste management purpose;” and (2) it prohibits or restricts the sale or use of “containers” 

or “packages” (i.e., a plastic bag). 

 

The city argued that, by regulating plastic bags, the ordinance aims to prevent litter as opposed to 

managing solid waste.  The court disagreed and stated that, by prohibiting the sale and use of 

bags to prevent them from becoming litter, the ordinance is regulating the generation of litter. 

Controlling the generation of solid waste is the “management” of solid waste as that term is 

defined by the code. 

 

The city also argued that a “container or package” relates to prohibiting municipal regulation of 

wasteful product packaging, rather than plastic carryout bags.  The court disagreed and 

http://www.search.txcourts.gov/SearchMedia.aspx?MediaVersionID=e22521a2-d36f-4889-ba4a-2dc6b87de83e&coa=coa04&DT=Opinion&MediaID=3e437d54-8e32-4b51-93e9-49739de5c062
http://www.search.txcourts.gov/SearchMedia.aspx?MediaVersionID=e22521a2-d36f-4889-ba4a-2dc6b87de83e&coa=coa04&DT=Opinion&MediaID=3e437d54-8e32-4b51-93e9-49739de5c062


2 
 
 

concluded that those terms included plastic checkout bags.  One justice filed a dissenting 

opinion, in which she argued that a plastic bag is not a “container” under the state law.  Because 

the ordinance does not apply to solid waste containers, she argued, the state law and the 

ordinance could both be given effect. 

 

The League will report on whether the city intends to appeal the opinion.   

 

 

Senate Committee Re-Do: 

Renewed Big-Government Efforts to Centralize Power in Austin 
 

If some state senators get their way, Texas cities will be homogenized, one-size-fits-all 

governments that are controlled from Austin.  And this time it’s not even city officials they have 

a problem with; it’s city voters who use direct democracy through the home rule initiative and 

referendum process. 

 

The Senate Committee on Intergovernmental Relations held its first interim hearing on 

December 2.  At that meeting, it heard testimony on its charge to “examine the processes used by 

home rule municipalities to adopt ordinances, rules, and regulations, including those initiated by 

petition and voter referendum.” 

 

Last Monday, it held a second hearing on the exact same charge.  Apparently, certain witnesses 

didn’t get the chance to complain about cities at the first hearing, so they were given another 

chance.  The second hearing focused on recent referenda in the City of Houston, but every city 

official (and city voter) should be mortified by many of the suggestions that were made. 

 

Referendum is a process that is unique to home rule cities.  It isn’t authorized anywhere in state 

law.  Rather, it is a creature of the home rule amendment to the Texas Constitution.  That 

amendment was adopted by the voters in 1912.  Of the almost 400 home rule cities in Texas, 

voters in 93 percent have adopted referendum provisions.   Those charter provisions were all 

adopted pursuant to a local election.   The process typically provides for the submission of a 

petition signed by a certain percentage of registered voters in a city to enact or repeal a local 

ordinance.  (The percentage is dictated by the charter, which can be amended through an 

election.)  Once the signatures on a petition are verified as authentic, the council usually has the 

option of repealing the ordinance or submitting it to an election on the merits. 

 

It appears from the statements of some legislators and witnesses that they believe the process 

should be “uniform” across the state.  What that uniformity would look like is anyone’s guess.  

Would it mean a very high signature threshold?  Or would they want to lower it, making it such 

that some tiny minority could muddle up every action a city council takes?  Would it remove 

some ordinances from the process?  (Some already are, based on whether there is a state law 

procedure for adoption.)  Would it limit the authority of a city secretary to throw out invalid 

signatures?   

 

What better way to answer those questions than to defer to the voters of each city, who can 

address all those questions right now?  According to some, the better way is to have a state 

http://www.search.txcourts.gov/SearchMedia.aspx?MediaVersionID=84008056-f9ea-4baa-9d62-23c95332e6d3&coa=coa04&DT=Opinion&MediaID=c19f03a6-68af-4e7e-8346-d9f97698c8bf
http://www.search.txcourts.gov/SearchMedia.aspx?MediaVersionID=84008056-f9ea-4baa-9d62-23c95332e6d3&coa=coa04&DT=Opinion&MediaID=c19f03a6-68af-4e7e-8346-d9f97698c8bf


3 
 
 

legislator from Houston decide what’s best for the citizens of Amarillo, or one from San Antonio 

decide what’s best for the citizens of Plano.   

 

Even more intriguing was a suggestion at the hearing that a city shouldn’t be able to defend itself 

in court if there is a dispute about the process.  Some committee members were appalled that a 

city council would defend itself from a lawsuit relating to the language that’s placed on the 

ballot, whether signatures on the petition are valid, or whether the subject matter of a petition is 

appropriate for referendum.  Presumably, those members believe that those suing a city are 

correct every time, all the time, and that they should just “get their way” because they filed a 

lawsuit.  In fact, some testifying at the hearing said that a mayor or city councilmember should 

be subject to criminal penalties for voting to defend their city in a lawsuit!    

 

Why is referendum under such scrutiny?  The truth is that some legislators don’t like the 

ordinances that some cities pass.  Recently, some cities have taken on controversial issues, such 

as equal rights and transportation network companies.  When those with deep pockets try to 

overturn the regulations by referendum and fail, they frequently move on to lawsuits.  And when 

the lawsuits don’t get the results they want over the wishes of city residents?  They head on 

down to Austin. 

 

Cities are always willing to discuss compromise legislation, but these ideas reek of big 

government in Austin taking away city voters’ right to direct democracy.  Direct democracy at 

the city level is a privilege, not a right.  Negotiations about the difficulty or ease of its use should 

take place at the local level.  If legislators want to centralize that power in Austin, perhaps local 

voters should just amend their charters to eliminate it altogether.   

 

 

Senate Committee Once Again Discusses Local Debt, 

Mandatory Local Debt Reporting 
 
The Senate Committee on Intergovernmental Relations held its first interim hearing on 

December 2.  Last Monday, it held a second hearing on the exact same charges, including one to 

“examine ways to improve government accountability in elections regarding the issuance of 

public debt.”   

 

The usual suspects gave the usual testimony.  Some try to frighten by taking the total amount of 

local government debt and dividing it by the total number of people in the state.  “That’s $12,500 

for every man, woman, and child in Texas,” they lament.  But that number tells us nothing.   

Some live in areas with zero debt, while some live in areas with higher debt.  It’s all a function of 

where one chooses to live, ability to pay, and willingness to incur. 

 

Some play the “we’re passing this on to our children” card.   That’s a red herring as well.  Local 

government debt is typically revolving all the time.  It’s not an ever increasing total that isn’t 

being paid back.     
 



4 
 
 

League testimony highlighted recent legislation that requires cities and other local governments 

to put together an annual report on debt information and make the report available to the public, 

as well legislation requiring various types of debt information to be included in the election order 

that is then posted on the city’s website and at every polling place used in a bond election.  That 

type of transparency is helpful, and the League was supportive of that legislation.  

 

However, the League will continue to oppose, as it did at this interim hearing, attempts to add 

limited and potentially misleading debt information to the ballot proposition itself, which has the 

effect of swaying voters towards rejecting debt issuances simply because they are not presented 

with a complete picture of a city’s finances. 

 

 

FCC Overturned on Municipal Broadband 
 

Last week, the federal Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit issued its opinion in State of 

Tennessee, et al. v. FCC, et al.   The opinion reverses a Federal Communications Commission 

(FCC) Order preempting state laws in Tennessee and North Carolina that prohibited cities from 

providing broadband service. (In other words, the FCC said that cities can provide Internet 

service, even though a state law prohibits it.  The federal court opinion reversed the FCC and 

said that a state can prohibit cities from providing Internet service.) 

 

The FCC concluded that the state prohibitions are barriers to broadband deployment, investment 

and competition, and conflict with the FCC’s mandate to promote those goals.  Thus, it voted to 

allow the City of Chattanooga, Tennessee’s Utility and the City of Wilson, North Carolina to 

expand broadband service outside their current footprints in response to numerous requests from 

neighboring unserved and underserved communities. The FCC Order highlighted the value of 

municipal broadband in meeting these goals, particularly in areas where service was not provided 

by industry. 

 

The Texas Municipal League didn’t directly participate in that proceeding because, at the time, 

Texas law allowed cities to provide broadband service.  A subsequent FCC order has challenged 

that authority, though.  In addition, participation would have been a double-edged sword because 

the FCC attempts to preempt city authority more often than state authority.  Arguing that the 

FCC should be able preempt states could have been interpreted as the self-defeating argument 

that it should be able to preempt cities as well. 

  

The Sixth Circuit overturned the FCC Order, concluding that the federal Telecommunications 

Act does not provide a “clear statement” that the FCC has sufficient authority to preempt state 

laws.  While the case was a loss for the cities in Tennessee and North Carolina, it may be 

beneficial when the FCC attempts to preempt cities in the future.    

 

 
 
 

 

 

TML member cities may use the material herein for 

any purpose. No other person or entity may 

reproduce, duplicate, or distribute any part of this 

document without the written authorization of the 

Texas Municipal League. 

http://www.tml.org/legis_updates/mandatory-local-debt-reporting
http://www.opn.ca6.uscourts.gov/opinions.pdf/16a0189p-06.pdf
http://www.opn.ca6.uscourts.gov/opinions.pdf/16a0189p-06.pdf


 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

8-25-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #4 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

RE-ADOPTION OF CURFEW ORDINANCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

8-25-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #5  

 

ORDINANCE 16-782 

CURFEW READOPTION ORDINANCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF HUMBLE 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 16-782 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS READOPTING 

CITY OF HUMBLE ORDINANCE 13-719 WHICH ESTABLISHED A 

CURFEW FOR PERSONS UNDER THE AGE OF 17 YEARS, BETWEEN 

11:00 P.M. ON SUNDAY, MONDAY, TUESDAY, WEDNESDAY, OR 

THURSDAY AND 6:00 A.M. ON THE FOLLOWING DAY, BETWEEN 

THE HOURS OF 12:01 A.M. AND 6:00 A.M. ON ANY SATURDAY OR 

SUNDAY, AND BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 9:00 A.M. AND 2:30 P.M. 

FOR SCHOOL-AGED CHILDREN ON SCHOOL DAYS; PROVIDING IT 

UNLAWFUL FOR ANY PERSON SUBJECT TO A CURFEW 

HEREUNDER TO REMAIN IN ANY PUBLIC PLACE OR ON THE 

PREMISES OF ANY ESTABLISHMENT WITHIN THE CITY DURING 

CURFEW HOURS; PROVIDING IT UNLAWFUL FOR ANY PARENT OR 

GUARDIAN OF AP ERSON SUBJECT TO A CURFEW HEREUNDER TO 

KNOWINGLY PERMIT, OR BY INSUFFICIENT CONTROL, ALLOW 

SUCH PERSON TO REMAIN IN ANY PUBLIC PLACE OR ON THE 

PREMISES OF ANY ESTABLISHMENT WITHIN THE CITY DURING 

CURFEW HOURS; PROVIDING IT UNLAWFUL FOR ANY PERSON 

OWNING, OPERATING, OR IN THE EMPLOYMENT OF ANY 

ESTABLISHMENT IN THE CITY TO KNOWINGLY ALLOW A 

PERSON SUBJECT TO A CURFEW HEREUNDER TO REMAIN ON 

THE PREMISES OF SUCH ESTABLISHMENT DURING CURFEW 

HOURS; PROVIDING DEFENSES TO PROSECUTION FOR 

VIOLATIONS HEREUNDER; PROVIDING A PENALTY OF AN 

AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $500.00 FOR EACH DAY OF VIOLATION 

OF ANY PROVISION HEREOF; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS; 

REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES 

INCONSISTENT OR IN CONFLICT HEREWITH AND PROVIDING FOR 

SEVERABILITY.  IT IS THE INTENTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED THAT THE PROVISIONS OF THIS 

ORDINANCE SHALL BECOME AND BE MADE PART OF THE CODE 

OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS AND THE SECTIONS 

OF THIS ORDINANCE MAY BE RENUMBERED TO ACCOMPLISH 

SUCH INTENTION. 

 

 

WHEREAS, public hearings were conducted on July 28, 2016 and August 11, 2016 to consider an 

extension of the juvenile curfew ordinance for a term of three years and it was the 

opinion of the City Council to extend the ordinance for three years as the City Council 

has determined that the curfew ordinance has had a positive effect as a deterrent to 

juvenile violence, juvenile gang activity, and crime committed by persons under the 

age of 17 years in the City of Humble, Texas; and 

 



 2 

WHEREAS, due to their lack of maturity and experience, persons under the age of 17 years are 

particularly susceptible to participate in unlawful and gang-related activities and to be 

victims of older perpetrators of crime; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Humble has an obligation to provide for the protection of minors from each 

other and from other persons, for the enforcement of parental control over the 

responsibility for children, for the protection of the general public and for the reduction 

of the incidence of juvenile violence and criminal activity; and 

 

WHEREAS, a curfew applicable to persons under the age of 17 years will be in the interest of public 

health, safety and general welfare and will diminish the undesirable impact of such 

conduct on the citizens of the City of Humble;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, 

TEXAS, THAT: 

 

Section 1. The facts and matters set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are 

hereby found to be true and correct. 

 

Section 2. Purpose.  It is the express purpose of this ordinance to (a) deter criminal 

conduct involving juveniles, (b) reduce the number of juvenile crime 

victims, (c) reduce injury from accidents involving juveniles, (d) reduce the 

additional time police officers are required to be in the field due to juvenile 

crime, (e) provide additional and more effective means and options for 

dealing with gang-related violence and crime, (f) reduce juvenile peer 

pressure to stay out late, (g) reduce juvenile peer pressure to participate in 

violent or criminal activities and (h) assist parents in the control of their 

children. 

 

Section 3. Definitions.  For the purposes of this Ordinance the following words or 

terms shall have the meanings ascribed thereto: 

 

(A)  Curfew Hours shall mean: 

 

(1) 11:00 p.m. on any Sunday, Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, 

or Thursday until 6:00 a.m. of the following day; 

(2) 12:01 a.m. until 6:00 a.m. on any Saturday or Sunday; and 

(3) 9:00 a.m. until 2:30 p.m. on any Monday, Tuesday, 

Wednesday, Thursday or Friday; provided, however, the 

hours defined in this paragraph (3) shall not be considered as 

Curfew Hours for minors not subject to compulsory school 

attendance pursuant to §21.032, Texas Education Code, nor 

shall the hours defined in this paragraph (3) be considered as 

Curfew Hours on days or during periods in which the school 

were the applicable minor is enrolled is closed or classes for 

which the applicable minor is enrolled have been canceled 

under the order and direction of officials authorized to issue 

such orders and directives. 



 3 

 

(B) Emergency shall mean any unforeseen combination of 

circumstances or the resulting state that calls for immediate action.  

This term shall include, but not be limited to, a fire, natural disaster, 

automobile accidents or any situation requiring immediate action to 

prevent serious bodily injury or loss of life. 

 

(C) Establishment shall mean any privately owned place of business 

operated for a profit to which the public is invited including, but not 

limited to, any place of amusement or entertainment. 

 

(D) Guardian  shall mean a person who, under court order, is the 

guardian of the person of a minor or a public or private agency with 

whom a minor has been placed by a court. 

 

(E) Minor  shall mean any person under 17 years of age. 

 

(F) Operator  shall mean any individual, firm, association, partnership 

or corporation operating, managing or conducting any 

establishment.  The term includes the members or partners of an 

association or partnership and the officers of a corporation. 

 

(G) Parent  shall mean a person who is a natural parent, adoptive 

parents, stepparent of a minor, a responsible adult or a person at 

least 18 years of age who is authorized by the parent or guardian to 

have the care and custody of such minor. 

 

(H) Police Department  shall mean the Humble Police Department or 

any successor police department of the City of Humble. 

 

(I) Public Place  shall mean any place to which the public or a 

substantial group of the public has access and shall include but not 

be limited to, streets, highways and the common areas of schools, 

hospitals, apartment houses, office buildings, transport facilities, 

restaurants, theaters, game rooms, shops, shopping centers or any 

other place that offers for sale services or merchandise.  

 

(J) Remain  shall mean to linger or stay or fail to leave premises when 

required to do so by a police officer or the owner, operator or other 

person in control of the premises. 

 

(K) Serious Bodily Injury  shall mean bodily injury that creates a 

substantial risk of death or that causes death, serious permanent 

disfigurement or protracted loss or impairment of the function of 

any bodily member or organ. 

 

    Section 4 Offenses.   



 4 

(A) It shall be unlawful for any minor to knowingly remain, walk, run, 

stand or operate or ride about in any motor vehicle or bicycle in or 

upon any public place or on the premises of any establishment 

within the City during curfew hours. 

 

(B) It shall be unlawful for the parent or guardian of a minor to 

knowingly permit, or by insufficient control, allow a minor to 

remain in or upon any public place or on the premises of any 

establishment within the City during curfew hours. 

 

(C) It shall be unlawful for the owner, operator or any employee of an 

establishment to knowingly allow a minor to remain upon the 

premises of the establishment during curfew hours.   

 

 Section 5 Defenses.  

(A) It shall be a defense to prosecution under Section 4 of this 

Ordinance that the minor was: 

 

(1) accompanied by the minor’s parent or guardian; 

(2) on an errand at the direction of the minor’s parent or 

guardian; 

(3) in a motor vehicle involved in interstate travel; 

(4) engaged in lawful employment activity or going directly to 

the employment activity or returning directly to the minor’s 

residence from the employment activity; 

(5) involved in an emergency; 

(6) on an errand made necessary by an illness, injury, or 

emergency;  

(7) on the sidewalk abutting the minor’s permanent residence or 

abutting the residence of a next door neighbor of the minor’s 

permanent residence if the neighbor did not complain to the 

police department about the minor’s presence thereon; 

(8) attending a school, religious or government sponsored or 

other civic activity supervised by adults and sponsored by an 

educational, religious, or governmental institution, civic 

organization or other similar entity, or traveling directly to or 

returning from any such school, religious, governmental or 

civic activity. 

(9) engaged, participating in or traveling to or from any event, 

function, or activity for which the application of Section 4 of 

this Ordinance would contravene the minor’s rights 

protected by the United States Constitution including, but 

not limited to, First Amendment rights such as the free 

exercise of religion, freedom of speech or the right of 

assembly. 

(10) married or had been married or had disabilities of minority 

removed in accordance with Chapter 31 of the Texas Family 

Code. 



 5 

(B) It is a defense to prosecution under Section 4(C) that the owner, 

operator or employee of an establishment promptly notified the 

police department that a minor was present on the premises of the 

establishment during curfew hours and the minor refused to leave.  

 

(C) It is a defense to prosecution under Section 4 of this Ordinance that 

the minor has been directed by his or her parent or guardian to 

engage in a specific activity or to carry out expressed instructions 

during the time that the minor is actually engaged in fulfilling those 

directions or responsibilities.  

 

Section 6 Enforcement.  Before taking any enforcement action under this Ordinance, a 

police officer shall ask the apparent offender’s age and reason for being in 

the public place or establishment.  The officer shall not issue a citation or 

make an arrest under this Ordinance unless the officer reasonably believes 

that an offense has occurred and that based on any response and other 

circumstances, no defense in Section 5 is present. 

 

Section 7 Penalties. 

(A) A person who shall violate any provision of this Ordinance shall be 

deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be 

fined in an amount not to exceed $500.00.  Each day of violation 

shall constitute a separate offense. 

(B) When required by Section 51.08 of the Texas Family Code as 

amended, the municipal court shall waive original jurisdiction over a 

minor who violates Section 4(A) of this Ordinance and shall refer 

the minor to juvenile court. 

 

Section 8 All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict herewith, 

are, to the extent of such inconsistency or conflict, hereby repealed. 

 

Section 9 In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence or part of this Ordinance 

or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall for any 

reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent 

jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair or invalidate this Ordinance as a 

whole or any part or provision hereof other than the part declared to be 

invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Humble, 

Texas declared that it would have passed each and every part of the same 

notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or 

unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts. 

 

Section 10 It is the intention of the City Council and it is hereby ordained, that the 

provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made part of the Code of 

Ordinances, City of Humble, Texas and the sections of this Ordinance may 

be renumbered to accomplish such intention. 

 

Section 11 The provisions of this Ordinance shall take effect from the adopting date by 

the City Council, and ten (10) days after the publication of the caption of 



 6 

said Ordinance as the law in such cases provides, and it is accordingly so 

ordained. 

 

INTRODUCED and CONSIDERED in an open meeting of the City Council of the City of Humble 

on the 28
th

 day of July and on the 25
th

 day of August, 2016. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 25
th

 day of August 2016. 

 

        

 

              

       Merle Aaron  

       Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Jason Stuebe 

City Secretary 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION OF PUBLICATION: 

 

I, Jason Stuebe, as the City Secretary of the City of Humble do hereby certify in the performance 

of my office that the above Ordinance was published in the official newspaper of the City of 

Humble on:              

 

 

 

              

       Jason Stuebe 

       City Secretary 



 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

8-25-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #6 

 

ORDINANCE 16-783 

STORAGE UNIT MINIMUM PARKING 

AMENDMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF HUMBLE 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 16-783 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, 

TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 38 “SUBDIVISIONS,” SECTION 29 

“OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS” BY ADDING 

SUBSECTION AA MINIMUM PARKING REQUIREMENTS FOR 

STORAGE UNIT FACILITIES; AND MAKING OTHER FINDINGS AND 

PROVISIONS RELATED THERETO.  

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, 

TEXAS, THAT: 

 

Section 1. Section 38-29 (2) aa of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Humble, 

Texas is hereby created to read as follows: 

 

 Sec. 38-29 – Off-street parking requirements.  

 

(2)   Nonresidential parking requirements.  The following schedule of 

 minimum off-street parking requirements shall apply to all 

 nonresidential construction, new or structurally altered, within the 

 city: 

 

aa. Storage unit facilities:  one parking space for each 40 storage 

units 

  

Section 2. In the event any clause phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this Ordinance 

or the application of the same to any person or circumstances shall for any 

reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent 

jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a 

whole or any part or provision hereof other than the part declared to be 

invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Humble, 

Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part of the same 

notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or 

unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 2 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 25th day of August 2016. 

 

        

 

              

       Merle Aaron  

       Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Jason Stuebe 

City Secretary 

 



 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

8-25-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #7 

 

DEVELOPMENT PLAT 

REPLAT #3 

TPG WILL CLAYTON 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

8-25-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #8 

 

SUBDISIVION PLAT 

USA PLAT 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



.

”

”

”

”



 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

8-25-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #9 

 

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

GIS HOSTING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



































 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

8-25-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #10 

 

DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES 

CONTRACT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





























EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF SERVICES 

 A-1  

Service Offerings 
Tetra Tech, Inc. (Tetra Tech) has access to the full range of personnel with key expertise in relevant topic areas 

described in the Houston-Galveston Area Council (H-GAC) request for proposals (RFP). Our team offers services 

in all areas of security, disaster preparedness, and emergency response and recovery. This document reviews 

our services offerings and hourly rates on the following pages. 

Emergency Management Consulting 
Unlike many emergency management firms that focus on planning, Tetra Tech is a full-service emergency 

management firm that works in all phases of emergency management. 

When a major incident occurs, the impact sends shockwaves around the globe. All eyes are on the incident and 

the level of scrutiny is overwhelming. As an experienced leader in the emergency management industry, Tetra 

Tech knows what it takes to respond effectively and to initiate recovery activities almost simultaneously, while 

maintaining transparency for the public and elected officials. 

We are better planners because of our active involvement in response and recovery efforts. We develop realistic 

plans that can be effectively implemented during a response. 

Tetra Tech works with organizations across the country in jurisdictions that face a variety of threats and hazards, 

from dense urban areas susceptible to security threats to coastal communities prone to hurricanes. For that 

reason, Tetra Tech maintains a multidisciplinary staff with backgrounds and experience in emergency 

management, hazardous materials (HAZMAT) response and recovery, public health and healthcare planning, 

transportation and evacuation, all-hazards mitigation, disaster resiliency and readiness planning, and response 

and recovery, among other fields. The breadth and depth of our expertise distinguishes Tetra Tech from other 

firms and allows us to provide the full range of planning and program execution services. 

Table 1. Emergency Management Consulting Services 

Service Offering Description 

Hazard Mitigation Planning Tetra Tech provides hazard mitigation plan development for clients to 
establish mitigation goals and objectives, and to identify projects that 
enable the jurisdiction to prepare for and reduce the impacts of a 
disaster in a Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)-
compliant format. 

Emergency Operations Planning Tetra Tech provides our clients with emergency operations planning 
consisting of a basic plan, emergency support functions (ESFs) 
annexes, and incident-specific appendices that address direction and 
control, communications, public warning, emergency public 
information, evacuation, mass care, health and medical, resource 
management, etc.  

Continuity of Operations (COOP) 
Planning 

Tetra Tech develops COOP plans for our clients so they are prepared 
to provide mission essential functions across a wide range of 
emergencies. A COOP plan is designed to plan for denial of access to 
a facility, denial of service due to equipment or systems failure, and 
denial of service due to a reduced workforce. 

Continuity of Government (COG) 
Planning 

Tetra Tech provides COG planning to our client to ensure continued 
leadership, authorities, direction and control, and preservation of 
records to maintain a viable system of government.  



EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF SERVICES 

 A-2  

Service Offering Description 

Emergency Support Function (ESF) 
Planning 

Tetra Tech provides ESF planning to assign roles and responsibilities 
of supporting agencies as either a stand-alone planning effort or part of 
an EOP. ESFs provide a structure for managing response efforts that 
involve multiple agencies at the local, state, and/or regional level. 

Departmental Emergency Response 
Planning 

Tetra Tech assists department-level clients within a larger organization 
with primary or secondary support roles under the ESFs to develop 
specific emergency plans. Departmental emergency response 
planning is the effort used to develop standard operating guides and/or 
standard operating procedures for departments with primary or support 
responsibilities. 

Evacuation Planning Tetra Tech provides evacuation planning support to our clients 
,including the development of: 

 Clear agency roles/responsibilities for small- and large-scale and 
point source evacuation scenarios 

 Effective situational awareness communication protocols to 
determine evacuation areas and evacuation participation rates 

 Development of consistent and effective warning order 
evacuation/shelter-in-place terminology designed to motivate 
citizens and tourists to evacuate with a sense of urgency and 
along advocated routes or to shelter in place if they are outside the 
impact zone 

 Tailored time-phased protective action measures (such as staging 
and mutual aid activation) to ensure that populations at risk can be 
effectively and efficiently moved out of harm’s way and sheltered 
as needed 

 Identification of vulnerable special needs populations, 
transportation-dependent communities, large animal and pet 
considerations, additional behavioral assumptions, critical traffic 
control points, and available intelligent traffic monitoring systems 

 Easily defined evacuation zones coupled with a public awareness 
strategy 

 Zonal evacuation clearance times and/or shelter-in-place guidance 
designed for a range of possible point source, no-notice, and 
terrorist phased approach 

Regional Catastrophic Planning Tetra Tech provides regional catastrophic planning services designed 
to promote regional coordination and communications between 
multiple jurisdictions to help them prepare and respond to an incident 
effectively as a region, and to initiate recovery activities almost 
simultaneously, while maintaining transparency for the public and 
elected officials.  

Mass Care/Surge Capacity Planning Using a worst-case scenario, Tetra Tech provides mass care/surge 
capacity planning services to identify a client’s strategy and current 
capabilities for mass evacuation and sheltering. The evacuation 
strategy is designed to take a phased approach, emphasizing special 
needs groups in hospitals and nursing homes and residents without 
access to transportation. 



EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF SERVICES 

 A-3  

Service Offering Description 

Metropolitan Medical Response 
System (MMRS) Planning 

Tetra Tech provides MMRS planning for clients designed to support 
the local jurisdiction in enhancing and maintaining its all-hazards 
response capabilities to mass casualty incidents. MMRS planning is 
intended for use during the early hours critical to life-saving and 
population protection during terrorist acts using weapons of mass 
destruction; chemical, biological, nuclear, radiological, and/or explosive 
(CBRNE) weapons; large-scale HAZMAT incidents; epidemic disease 
outbreaks; and/or natural disasters.  

Volunteer Management Planning Working closely with a lead volunteer agency for this effort, Tetra Tech 
develops volunteer management plans for client to be used to 
document the volunteer programs, training strategies, and available 
resources already defined under the Community Emergency 
Response Team (CERT) through its Citizen Corps.  

Family Assistance Center (FAC) and 
Reunification Planning 

 

Tetra Tech provides FAC and reunification planning to support 
displaced families in locating and reuniting with their loved ones 
following a crisis. It also serves to prevent confusion and disorder by 
ensuring the delivery of a single, concise message to the community 
and the media. 

Emergency Management 
Accreditation Program (EMAP) 
Accreditation Support 

 

Tetra Tech provides EMAP accreditation support to clients interested 
in becoming accredited in the program. This involves assessing a 
jurisdiction’s emergency management program against the 64 EMAP 
standards to identify potential gaps and deficiencies. This allows the 
jurisdiction to remedy gaps in preparation for an assessment by an 
EMAP accreditation team. 

Strategic Planning 

 

Tetra Tech provides emergency management organizations with 
strategic planning to set the course and direction of a jurisdiction or 
agency. It defines the vision, mission, and long-term goals, objectives, 
and milestones of the jurisdiction.  

Disaster Debris Management 
Planning 

 

Tetra Tech provides comprehensive disaster debris management 
planning services to organizations inclusive of developing the 
jurisdictional structure, guidance, and standardized procedures for the 
clearance, removal, and disposal of debris caused by a major debris-
generating event in the most cost-effective and efficient manner.  

Information Technology Disaster 
Recovery (ITDR) Planning 

Tetra Tech provides ITDR planning involving a systematic inventory 
and prioritization of communications systems, including telephones, 
voicemail, facsimile, data lines, network access, Internet access, 
wireless communications and PDAs, and application software and 
hardware.  

Crisis Communication/Public 
Information Planning 

 

Tetra Tech provides crisis communication/public information planning 
to media relations groups or organizations, through the establishment 
of the joint information center, to develop templates for public 
information and to create a public information guide.  

HAZMAT Commodity Flow Studies 
and Local Emergency Planning 
Committee (LEPC)  

Tetra Tech provides HAZMAT commodity flow studies and develops 
LEPCs, which involves a risk assessment of the types and amounts of 
hazardous materials being transported in and through a jurisdiction via 
highway and rail corridors and fixed facilities located within a 
jurisdiction.  



EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF SERVICES 

 A-4  

Service Offering Description 

Crisis Planning for Higher Education 

 

Tetra Tech provides crisis planning for colleges and universities to 
assess risk, set priorities, and develop an actionable plan that can be 
readily executed in the event of an emergency in order to protect a 
school’s students, faculty, facilities, and research, which form the 
backbone of the institution.  

Training, Testing, and Exercise 
Planning 

 

Tetra Tech assists clients with training, testing, and exercise planning 
for emergency management scenarios and topics. This involves a 
systematic approach to train, test, and exercise a jurisdiction’s 
emergency management program and response capabilities in a non-
threatening environment, and to identify the work that needs to be 
done to comply with FEMA, Homeland Security Exercise and 
Evaluation Program (HSEEP), and other regulatory guidelines.  

Integrated Planning and 
Management System  

Tetra Tech provides Integrated Planning and Management System 
(IPMS) for clients to include developing baseline, scheduling, risk 
management, cost estimating, funds and financial management, 
performance analysis and monthly reports, and what-if analyses.  

Internet/Computer-Based Training 
(IBT/CBT) 

Tetra Tech prepares stand-alone computer-based training for 
individual client’s needs and Internet-based training to meet the needs 
of on-demand and geographically diverse training requirements. 

Asset Management Tetra Tech’s asset management solutions help clients integrate 
planning, scheduling, and tracking of maintenance requirements, 
enterprise resource planning, supply chain management, inventory 
management, procurement, Radio Frequency Identification 
(RFID)/Unique Identification (UID) execution, reference management, 
and training management. Our customized solutions integrate external 
financial and resource management systems. 

Operations Center Services Tetra Tech provides emergency operations center support services for 
local, regional, and state organizations. These services include 
24/7/365 support, C4I and situational awareness, custom emergency 
management system, and classified environments. 

Shared/Integrated Digital 
Environments (SDEs/IDEs) 

Tetra Tech develops a range of customizable SDEs/IDEs to provide 
portals to our project/program teams that are web-accessible and 
managed to provide authorized users access to all relevant 
materials/data in a user-friendly environment. In addition to being a 
knowledge base of programmatic information, these tools often provide 
configuration data, task order management, action tracking, user 
forums, deliverable tracking, financial management, asset information, 
etc., in support of the program requirements. 

Occupational Health and Safety 
(OHS) Planning  

Tetra Tech's OHS planning services include conducting worker risk 
assessments, identifying appropriate methods for worker protection, 
developing written health and safety programs, conducting training 
needs assessments, and developing instructor-led and computer-
based training programs. 



EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF SERVICES 

 A-5  

Service Offering Description 

Ebola and Other Special Emerging 
Pathogens (SEPATH) Planning 

Tetra Tech’s Ebola and SEPATH planning services include community 
partners across the healthcare continuum to work together to develop 
strategies for managing and caring for individuals who are known or 
suspected to be infected with a SEPATH. This includes planning for 
isolation and quarantine, transportation of persons under investigation 
(PUIs), worker protection, infectious waste management, and 
decedent handling. 

Mass Fatality Planning Our team’s mass fatality planning services involve working with 
coroners, emergency medical services, funeral directors, public health 
departments and other partners to assess a jurisdiction's ability to 
handle mass casualty incidents and developing strategies for 
strengthening this capability.  

Responder and Disaster Worker 
Health and Safety 

To help ensure the safety of first responders and disaster workers, 
Tetra Tech provides worker risk assessments, activity hazard analysis, 
and just-in-time health and safety training, including Hazardous Waste 
Operations and Emergency Response (HAZWOPER) training. Tetra 
Tech provides field operations safety monitoring, air monitoring and 
sampling support, and fit testing. We can also serve as site safety 
officers and provide safety staff support services. 

Community Rating System (CRS) 
Assessment 

Tetra Tech assists clients with conducting baseline assessments for 
communities interested in obtaining or improving their CRS rating. A 
programmatic baseline assessment looks at a community’s floodplain 
management program prior to a Community Assistance Visit (CAV) to 
identify issues that may render a community out of compliance under 
the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). 

CRS Application Tetra Tech assists clients with compiling the appropriate 
documentation for submitting an application to the CRS program. This 
may include interface with FEMA’s Insurance Services Office (ISO) 
and meeting with NFIP or FEMA during CAVs. 

Repetitive Loss Area Analysis  Tetra Tech assists clients with developing a Repetitive Loss Area 
Analysis (RLAA) as a systematic approach to analyzing the causes of 
repetitive flooding, structures impacted, and possible mitigation 
solutions by using the FEMA-identified RL properties as geographic 
locator for the issue. 

Debris Program Management Consulting Services 
Tetra Tech has helped over 250 clients recover from the damaging effects of hurricanes, tropical storms, floods, 

and ice storms across the country. Tetra Tech has successfully managed all phases of debris removal and 

associated reimbursement efforts, including the removal of and reimbursement for over 69 million cubic yards of 

debris, as well as the demolition of uninhabitable residential structures. We have helped local governments obtain 

over $3.5 billion in reimbursement funds. 

  



EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF SERVICES 

 A-6  

Table 2. Debris Program Management Consulting Services 

Service Offering Description 

Comprehensive Program 
Management 

Tetra Tech’s comprehensive program management involves providing 
the resources, personnel, and experience to manage all aspects of a 
disaster recovery project, including post-event reconstruction and 
demolition field services. 

Disaster Debris Removal 
Procurement and Negotiations 

Our services include assisting clients with disaster debris removal 
procurement and negotiations involves helping communities to develop 
the procurement process and contract documents to retain debris and 
construction contractors, and to negotiate terms and conditions to put 
enforceable agreements in place. 

Collection Monitoring Tetra Tech provides clients with staff to conduct collection monitoring 
involving the oversight of the debris collection process, including truck 
certification, route development, ticket preparation and documentation 
for FEMA-reimbursable loads. This service has the option of utilizing 
our Automated Debris Management System (ADMS) RecoveryTrac™. 

Disposal Monitoring  Tetra Tech provides disposal monitoring involving the oversight of 
debris disposal operations, including providing the volumetric 
measurement of incoming loads, authorizing tickets, and completing 
the documentation required for FEMA-reimbursable loads. This service 
has the option of utilizing our ADMS RecoveryTrac™. 

Hazardous Waste Collection, 
Disposal, and Monitoring 

Tetra Tech provides hazardous waste collection, disposal, and 
monitoring, which involves designing hazardous waste removal 
programs that efficiently address specific emergencies, including 
animal carcass removal, asbestos-laden building material removal, 
Freon unit removal, and paint and chemical segregation and removal. 
This service has the option of utilizing our ADMS RecoveryTrac™. 

Leaner/Hanger/Stump Removal 
Monitoring 

Tetra Tech provides leaner/hanger/stump removal monitoring involving 
surveying, documenting, and monitoring the removal of leaning trees, 
hanging limbs, and stumps. This service has the option of utilizing our 
ADMS RecoveryTrac™. 

Debris Management Site (DMS) 
Environmental Support 

After disasters, Tetra Tech’s team provides DMS environmental 
support to clients for obtaining documentation and assisting in the 
performance of all required testing by federal, state, and local agencies 
to support the establishment of DMS locations.  

Beach Remediation/Restoration Tetra Tech provides beach remediation/restoration monitoring services 
for work associated with sand screening, sand recovery, beach 
reconstruction, and dredging operations to restore natural beaches. 

Private Property Debris Removal 
(PPDR) Program Administration 

Tetra Tech’s PPDR program administration services for clients 
involves reviewing ordinances and laws to ensure that the proper steps 
are taken and documented in removing debris from private property. 
This includes eligibility reviews, property surveys, monitoring, and 
providing public information.  

Waterway Debris Removal 
Monitoring 

 

Tetra Tech provides waterway debris removal monitoring and 
documentation for debris removed from navigable and other inland 
waterways. 



EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF SERVICES 

 A-7  

Service Offering Description 

Field Data Collection/ 
Management/Billing/Invoicing 

Tetra Tech can augment our client staff tasked with data collection and 
management as well as billing and invoicing. This service includes 
developing and maintaining databases to document all field operations 
to ensure proper contractor payment, maximum reimbursement, and 
proper purchase order management. 

Data Management Tetra Tech’s web-enabled data management systems provide cradle-
to-grave life cycle data management for a program or specific disaster. 
Designed to meet all industry standards for relational databases, our 
systems enable users to easily find the right data in real time for our 
clients.  

Customer Information/Citizen 
Hotline/Community Relations 

Tetra Tech provides customer information/citizen hotline/community 
relations for clients after a disaster. This includes advising the public 
about important information regarding procedures associated with 
debris collection and removal, and providing updates about the 
operational progress being made to restore the community.  

Emergency Responder Website 
Services 

Our local information technology (IT) services within Tetra Tech 
supports our client’s full IT life cycle and content management needs.  
This includes content on many FEMA emergency responder websites, 
such as the Responder Knowledge Base (RKB), System Assessment 
and Validation for Emergency Responders (SAVER), and the Lessons 
Learned Information Sharing (LLIS). 

Data Collection Tetra Tech has a proven track record in data acquisition from systems 
and sensors and the ability to present this data in a well-defined 
manner through a host of application types and architectures. Once 
the data is acquired and housed in a relational database, Tetra Tech 
provides the analysis and trending capabilities that often accompany 
the federal grant requirements for our clients. 

Grant Administration and Disaster Recovery Management Services 
Tetra Tech’s team of grant administration and disaster recovery management services was established to provide 

grant funding consultation before and after a disaster. With a keen understanding of Office of Management and 

Budget (OMB) regulations, this team seeks to establish accounting systems and internal controls for its clients to 

minimize the instance of fraud, waste, abuse, and mismanagement of grant funds. We offer a staff of experts, with 

advanced degrees in business, administration, economics, and finance, as well as hands-on experience in the 

field. Funding sources include the FEMA Public Assistance (PA) Program, Individual Assistance (IA) Program, 

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP, U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 

Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG), U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) Natural 

Resources Conservation Service (NRCS); and many others. We guide our clients through the complexities of 

program procedures and requirements, which often are not consistently interpreted by local, state, and federal 

government agencies. 

Table 3. Grant Administration and Management Services 

Service Offering Description 

FEMA Reimbursement Technical 
Assistance Consulting 

Tetra Tech’s FEMA reimbursement technical assistance consulting 
services involve providing guidance and technical assistance for 
project applications and programs for disaster reimbursement related 
to response and recovery efforts on behalf of our clients.  



EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF SERVICES 

 A-8  

Service Offering Description 

FEMA Compliance Monitoring and 
Audit Oversight 

Tetra Tech’s grant administrators document eligible work in the field 
and organize such documentation in an audit-ready format for future 
review. This includes OMB, FEMA and HUD guidance requiring that 
grantees or subgrantees monitor the expenditure of funds and 
document such expenditures in a manner that will satisfy regulatory 
audits in the future. This includes Section 3, Fair Housing, 2 CFR 200, 
and other Federal grant requirements. 

IA Services Tetra Tech assists clients with application intake, case management, 
grant administration, staffing at Disaster Recovery Centers, 
expenditure monitoring, and other programmatic needs associated 
with the IA declaration. 

PA Services Tetra Tech’s team of PA consultants assists our clients with 
documenting and accounting for such costs on project worksheets. 
This includes providing technical assistance on FEMA’s rules, 
practices, and procedures covering reimbursement for temporary and 
permanent work in eligible FEMA categories.  

Grant Application Development and 
Administration 

(CDBG, HMGP, FHWA, NRCS, FTA, 
FEMA PA, and FEMA IA) 

Tetra Tech provides grant application development and administration 
involves providing grant program specialists to assist with the time-
consuming process of gathering data and information required to 
develop grant applications to various agencies and programs. 

HUD CDGB-DR Services Tetra Tech provides knowledge, experience, and technical 
competence in the planning, administration, and implementation of 
eligible CDBG activities as identified at 24 CFR 570 and modified or 
waived under the Federal Register allocation of the CDBG-DR funds. 

Unmet Needs Assessment Tetra Tech assists clients with developing unmet needs assessments 
that identify type and location of the community’s disaster recovery 
needs especially in the three core aspects of recovery: housing, 
infrastructure, and economic recovery.  

Policies and Procedures Manual 
Development 

Tetra Tech assists client’s Project Management and Operations 
including the ability to develop policies and procedures for 
implementing all CDBG-DR funded programs and activities, including 
contractor, subcontractor, and sub-recipient oversight and monitoring. 

Damage Assessment Tetra Tech assists clients with damage assessment activities involving 
deploying a team of experienced staff to document damage sustained 
during a disaster in a format that is acceptable for requesting FEMA 
PA funds.  

Eligibility Consultation Tetra Tech provides eligibility consultation involves providing grant 
recipients with an understanding of funding options and preferences 
for repairs as they relate to various grant program eligibility 
considerations. 

Project Ranking Tetra Tech assists clients with ranking potential projects for future 
consideration through federal grants. This includes providing grant 
recipient constituents with a prioritized plan of action for reconstruction 
and mitigation projects to achieve recovery objectives. 



EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF SERVICES 

 A-9  

Service Offering Description 

Financial Advisory Tetra Tech provides financial advisory services involving the 
development of program budgets to provide transparency to grant 
recipients relating to the local cost share, the financial burden, and 
obligations for program participation. 

Cash Flow Management Tetra Tech provides financial departments within an organization with 
cash flow management associated with the disbursement of federal 
grants. This includes developing program budgets to allow grant 
recipients to meet current obligations with minimum reliance upon 
bridge financing. 

Procurement Assistance Tetra Tech provides procurement assistance to our client’s including 
providing procurement experts to provide disaster contracting 
guidance to review scopes, adherence to grant funding requirements 
and 2 CFR 200, and satisfactory project completion. 

Benefit Cost Analysis Tetra Tech develops benefit cost analysis involving a formalized 
schedule of anticipated project costs to projected future benefits to 
establish a quantifiable means for understanding project value. 

Feasibility and Effectiveness 
Studies 

Tetra Tech provides feasibility and effectiveness studies involving the 
documentation of projects being considered are financially sound, 
reasonable to implement, and effective at mitigating future damage. 
This includes alternate projects, improved projects, or 406 mitigation 
proposals to include hydrological and hydraulic (H&H) feasibility 
studies, cost estimating and conceptual project designs.  

Floodplain Feasibility Modeling Tetra Tech can provide clients with modeling of natural or manmade 
above ground waterways is used to determine where to place critical 
facilities including roads, bridges, and emergency operations centers. 
Readily applicable models such as HEC-RAS (FEMA standard flood 
modeling) provide quick answers to what if scenarios.  This may 
include basic modeling using spreadsheets or software program or 
more in-depth modeling utilizing GIS tools. 

Advanced Feasibility Modeling Tetra Tech can provide clients with advanced modeling is typically 
used to answer challenging questions that involve complex flooding, 
erosion, scour and debris. 2-D and 3-D hydrodynamic and water 
quality models for rivers, streams, lakes, and estuaries help to 
determine permitting approaches that meet project time frames and 
guide the project path around pitfalls.  

Site Survey and Legal Description 
Review 

Tetra Tech provides site survey and legal description review to clients 
by providing grant recipients with assurances that private property 
access is carried out legally without exposing it to unnecessary liability.

Owners Representative Services For projects in the construction phase, Tetra Tech provides Owner’s 
Representative advising services to our clients. These tasks may 
include projects interface with federal and state officials, PW 
versioning, and providing oversight to the construction firm. 

Appraisal and Valuation Services Our team can assist clients with appraisal and valuation services 
utilizing industry best practices to develop property appraisal and 
valuation documentation for acquisition programs.  



EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF SERVICES 

 A-10  

Service Offering Description 

Title Due Diligence Tetra Tech’s title due diligence services for our clients involves 
ensuring that only the legal property owner is consulted for program 
acquisition program participation. 

Public Outreach Program Tetra Tech provides public outreach programs that provides citizens 
with an outlet to ask questions, state concerns, and apply for program 
participation without burdening grant recipient staff and facilities. 

Public Meeting Facilitation Tetra Tech provides public meeting facilitation services including 
documenting meeting notices, fostering public participation and 
communicating the message of our clients. 

Homeowner Consultation Tetra Tech’s homeowner consultation involves providing a high level of 
service to citizens without burdening grant recipient staff with after-
hours and weekend meetings for programs involving 
acquisition/demolition, relocation, elevations or small repairs after 
disasters.  

Relocation Assistance Tetra Tech provides relocation assistance associated with acquisition 
or relocation programs. This includes engaging participants by 
providing relocation assistance conforming to Uniform Relocation Act 
(URA) rules and regulations. 

Property Management Tetra Tech provides property management services to clients who are 
grant recipients following disasters. This service includes program 
management to ensure that properties do not degrade to cause blight 
during the interim purpose phase.  

Negotiations Tetra Tech provides negotiation services in systematic, third-party 
approach for reaching amicable terms between citizens and the grant 
recipient. 

Closing Tetra Tech provides closing involving dedicating consultant resources 
to ensure a timely and efficient closing process during a buyout 
program. 

Data & Documentation Management Tetra Tech provides data and documentation management by storing 
grant-related data in a manner that provides efficient recall and review 
during closeout and auditing.  

Hazard Mitigation Proposals Tetra Tech develops of 406 Hazard Mitigation proposal associated 
with a written Project Worksheet after disasters to those entities 
participating in the FEMA PA program. 

Contractor Invoice Reconciliation Tetra Tech assists clients’ with contractor invoice reconciliation 
involves ensuring accurate payment to contractors and assigning 
incurred costs to funding sources to minimize local cost share. 

Regulatory Compliance Monitoring Tetra Tech provides regulatory compliance monitoring by documenting 
proper regulatory compliance to ensure maximum reimbursement and 
to avoid fines and site shutdowns, which slow the recovery process. 

Project Scoping Tetra Tech’s grant reimbursement team can create scoping documents 
that involve developing scopes of work for grant funding projects, using 
key terminology, and highlighting awareness of historical precedence, 
which maximizes grant funding opportunity. 

Insurance Adjusting/Subrogation Tetra Tech provides insurance adjusting/subrogation to clients to 
proactively resolve insurance issues prior to a grant de-obligation.  



EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF SERVICES 

 A-11  

Service Offering Description 

Eligibility Appeals Tetra Tech assists clients with eligibility appeals involve assisting 
clients with developing strategies and documentation to overturn a de-
obligation ruling during first or second appeals. 

Grant Closeout Tetra Tech assists client’s years after a disaster by providing closeout 
services to a grant recipient. This includes developing a closeout 
package that is organized to satisfy grant closeout and auditing.  

HUD Action Plan Development Tetra Tech assists clients with the development and submission of 
HUD required Action Plan for Disaster Recovery grant. These tasks 
may include the development of Action Plan amendments or waivers 
that may be required. 

Unmet Needs Analysis Tetra Tech develops unmet funding needs analysis to document the 
need for CDBG-DR funding and to form the basis of program design 
for the use of CDBG-DR funds. 

Emergency Operations Center Staff 
Augmentation 

Tetra Tech can support our client’s needs upon activation of a EOC by 
providing staff trained in incident management system (ICS) as section 
chiefs or operational staff. 

Long-Term Recovery Planning and Economic Development 
As part of or in addition to CDBG-DR funded recovery, communities, businesses, counties, states, and regions 

may engage in long-term recovery planning and economic development to rebuild but also to foster growth from 

the “new norm” following an economic downturn. Tetra Tech planners, economic development professionals, 

financial and budget analysts, and funding strategists can conduct this planning and implementation. These staff 

also assists communities in the long-term planning for their economic growth through the planning and 

prioritization process. 

Table 4. Long-Term Recovery Planning and Economic Development 

Service Offering Description 

Long-Term Recovery 
Planning 

Tetra Tech prepares a long-term recovery plan that strategically defines 
the magnitude of the disaster, identifies both recovery and resiliency 
projects, involves the public, creates a process for prioritizing the 
projects, and defines an implementation strategy for projects. This multi-
year strategic plan will be used by the community to attract financial 
assistance to implement their recovery efforts. 

Economic Development Tetra Tech assists clients with all aspects of planning to create focused 
strategic plans that include input from key stakeholders; analysis of data 
and statistics; economic impact, real estate, market and other quantitative 
analysis; project identification and prioritization; detailed implementation 
steps; examination of land use controls and codes; identification of 
opportunities for incremental success; and creation of definable and 
quantifiable goals in order to measure success. For communities with 
redevelopment opportunities, this also involves the creation of 
redevelopment plans to enhance key areas.  

Land Use Planning  Projects offered to Tetra Tech under this arena include: 

 Comprehensive Planning 

 Sustainable Community Plans 

 Resiliency Planning 



EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF SERVICES 

 A-12  

Service Offering Description 

 Urban Reinvestment 

 Sustainable Development Tools 

Emergency Network and Response Services 
Tetra Tech provides first response communication services to public safety organizations, wireless carriers, 

broadcasters, cable operators and other communication service providers. We have provided equipment, 

planning, management, logistics support, repairs, replacement, temporary facilities, on-site technical support, 

rental equipment, and numerous other services to our clients in emergency situations and are well prepared for 

future needs. We consider ourselves first responders and are relied upon by our public safety clients for 

emergency support services in addition to planned activities. Our strict employment criteria, including background 

checks, allows our staff access to the most sensitive locations and installations across the country. 

Table 5. Emergency Network Support Services 

Service Offering Description 

Emergency response and support  Rapid site deployment 

 TEMP microwave system deployment, including equipment 
rental 

 TEMP command center, shelters, and trailers 

 TEMP LMR deployment 

 TEMP LTE deployment 

 Deployment and rentals of Communications on Wheels (COW 
– Temp Towers) 

 On site tech support 

 Management, monitoring, and logistics 

 Site and tower damage inspections and audits 

 TEMP power and telco facilities 

 Fueling and stocking 

 Storage 

 Site, building, and tower repairs 

 Emergency equipment replacement 

 Material/equipment procurement, testing, and tracking 

 Site cleanup and restoration 

 Site development and re-builds, including planning through 
construction 

 Command vehicle support and repairs 

 Surveillance system support and deployment 

 Security 

Planning, engineering, and 
management services 

 Design visit 

 Drawings to include all detail needed to build site including 
(site plan, electrical, telco, and grounding details, RF antenna 
plan, etc.); typically 12-20 sheet set 

 P.E. stamp and seal 

 AutoCAD drawing file and hard copies (2) 11" x 17" sets, and 
(2) 22" x 34" sets if required 

 Drawing to include all detail required for zoning / permitting 
(cover sheet, site plan, elevation, etc.); typically 2-3 sheet set 



EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF SERVICES 

 A-13  

 Structural analysis of existing structure (rooftop, water tower, 
self-support, monopole, etc.) 

 Acquire documentation to complete structural analysis 

 Coordinate with site owner if they perform their own analysis 

 Adhere to current EIA-TIA-222 (Rev G or latest in effect) 

 Load case analyzed per structural analysis 

 Provide structural modification design of existing structure 

 Stamped and sealed by state licensed P.E. 

 Adhere to current EIA-TIA-222 (Rev G or latest in effect) 

 One revision to drawings 

 Acquire documentation from owner if readily available to 
complete structural evaluation 

 Provide structural evaluation letter to owner/client 

 Adhere to current EIA-TIA-222 (Rev G or latest in effect) 

 Stamped and sealed by state licensed P.E. 

 One bore at the center of the tower (Monopole) or at each 
tower leg (Self-Support Tower) 

 One bore within the footprint of the equipment shelter/pad 
location 

 Complete geotechnical report of lab findings and 
recommendations for proposed foundation sealed by a P.E. in 
the state where site is located 

 All samples and testing per project specification and latest 
revisions 

Audits, inspections, and 
maintenance services 

 Complete tower inventory 

 List of all attachments on tower (including antennas, dishes, 
omnis, mounts, lights, etc.) 

 Models and manufacturer, azimuths, heights, cables, and 
sizes 

 Digital photographs (minimum of 1 per appurtenance) 

 Upload of data to a cloud based collection server in Excel 
format 

 Includes mobilization 

 Remedy Major Defects within 24 hours 

 Remedy Minor Defects within 10 days unless mutually agreed 
upon for deferment to a later date 

Microwave services  LOS surveys, donor searches and site selection 

 System design, engineering, coordination, and licensing 

 Antenna system installation and testing 

 Radio system installation, testing, and integration 

 Factory, bench, field testing, and acceptance 

 Complete system rental and leasing 

 System upgrades 

 Emergency support, troubleshooting, and maintenance 

Tower erection and modifications  Self-support towers, guy tower, and monopole towers 

 Monopoles, monopines, monopalms, and other custom poles 

 Flag poles, stealth poles, crosses, and other custom designs 

 Custom design, fabrication, and installation of various steel 
structure types 

 Tower/pole extensions 



EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF SERVICES 

 A-14  

 Custom mounts 

 Tower upgrades 

 Demo and dismantling 

Civil construction services  Site clearing 

 Grading 

 Access road installation 

 Coordination of utilities 

 Generator foundations 

 Coordinating the transporting and setting of equipment 
shelters 

 Grounding 

 Fencing 

 Landscaping 

Building upgrades  Structured cabling systems, data centers, electronic security 
systems, audi video systems as well as wireless and in-
building cellular systems 

Electrical systems, including 
AC/DC power and battery back up 

 Single-phase and three-phase primary, secondary, service, 
and streetlight conduit and electric cable installation 

 Switchgear, transformer pad, and pedestal placement 

 Transformer and pedestal dig-ins 

 Transformer change outs 

 Manhole, hand hole, vault & pull box placements 

 HDPE & PVC conduit/pipe placement 

 Underground excavation methods with horizontal directional 
drilling (HDD) expertise 

 Vacuum excavation 

 Rock boring 

 Concrete encasement 

 Cable pulling 

 Electric cable termination 

 Emergency services 

Generator systems  100kw emergency generator deployment 

 Refueling 

 Emergency generator rental 

Troubleshooting  General site and tower maintenance 

 Electrical, generator, and backup power systems 

 DC power and solar systems 

 Antenna systems 

 BTS, radios, filters, amplifiers, and diplexers 

 Microwave systems 

 Transmission lines, jumpers, and connectors 

 Building/shelter maintenance 

 HVAC 

 Access roads and easements 

 Control and monitoring systems 

 Lighting systems 

 Camera and video systems 

 Telco and fiber 



EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF SERVICES 

 A-15  

 

Vulnerability/Hazard Identification/Risk Assessment Services 
Tetra Tech has a multidisciplinary team of toxicologists, chemists, ecologists, biologists, geologists, modelers, 

data managers, and environmental scientists that provide environmental risk expertise to the public and private 

sectors. Many of our scientists have graduate-level degrees and contribute to the scientific community by 

publishing in peer-reviewed journals and participating in presentations at national conferences of technical and 

professional organizations. 

  

Site development and real estate 
services 

 Special lease review 

 Tower foundation design report 

 Field visit 

 Visual inspection of suspect materials 

 Collection of sample materials for asbestos content up to 10 
samples 

 Quantify friable and non-friable material 

 Identification of lead based paint building materials 

 Sample removal and testing of up to 5 LBP samples 

 Review existing records 

 Compile report based upon findings 

 Review file for current zoning approval (number of antennas, 
growth etc.) 

 Review file for as builds 

 Call to jurisdiction to see if specific scope of work requires 
zoning as required by the jurisdiction: 

 Landscape Plan 

 Photometric Plan 

 Irrigation Plan 

 Grading Plan 

 Custom title block and borders specific to jurisdiction 

 Multiple Elevation Views 

 Notes, tables, statements, approval blocks required by 
specific jurisdictional zoning code 

Software Application 
Development 

 Cyber-Security: SSL3/TLS 1.x, ISO/IEC 27001 

 Mobile App Development: iOS-iPhone/iPad, Objective-c, Swift 
2.0, Android, Java, Mobile Responsive Web, HTML5, CSS3, 
Javascript 

 Solutions Architecture: Unix/Linux, MySQL, PostgreSQL, 
MongoDB, Content Management Systems (CMS), Drupal, 
Wordpress, Joomla, API’s, JSON/XML 

 Hosting Providers: Amazon Elastic Cloud Computing (EC2), 
Redundancy w/ Auto-Failover 

 Applications Overview: Weapons of Mass Destruction (WMD) 
Response, Natural Disaster Response, Fire Department 
Responders, Police Department Responders, Emergency 
Medical Responders, Federal Agency Responders, National 
Guard  



EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF SERVICES 

 A-16  

Table 6. Vulnerability/Hazard Identification/Risk Assessment Services 

Service Offering Description 

Hazardous Identification and 
Incident Response 

Tetra Tech provides turnkey planning, design, construction interface, 
and training for infrastructure security enhancement projects. Initiating 
the security solution is an objective VAs against industry and 
government standards, incorporating threat assessment, facility 
prioritization, consequence determination, systems effectiveness, risk 
reduction and mitigation, and limitations. 

Ecological Risk Assessments Tetra Tech provides risk assessment staff to conduct retrospective and 
predictive ecological risk assessments (ERAs) for commercial clients 
in aquatic and terrestrial environments. These ERAs span the range of 
desktop screening-level evaluations versus baseline ERAs that 
incorporate site-specific biological data. 

Comprehensive Environmental 
Response, Compensation & Liability 
Act of 1980 (CERCLA) and Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act 
(RCRA) Evaluations 

In addition, Tetra Tech provides CERCLA risk assessments and RCRA 
Tier 2 and 3 risk-based evaluations to support contaminant 
characterization and cleanup efforts. This includes conducted risk 
assessments to evaluate chemical and radiological exposures to 
humans and to various aquatic and terrestrial species of fauna and 
flora. Tasks would include statistical analysis, development of 
conceptual site models, risk calculations, modeling, and derivation of 
site-specific cleanup objectives for soil, groundwater, air, surface 
water, and sediment. 

Vulnerability Assessments (VAs) Tetra Tech has completed municipal water system VAs that utilize a 
pair-wise comparison approach to identify critical facilities and critical 
assets needed to maintain safe drinking water supplies. Tetra Tech 
also has implemented security enhancements that reduce the 
likelihood that a water system could be severely compromised as a 
result of a malevolent act. The terrorist response scenarios developed 
during VAs can be incorporated into the emergency contingency plan 
for incident response using a “rip and run” philosophy for easy use.  

Environmental Services 
Tetra Tech is passionate about mitigating global climate change. Customers seek our deep domain expertise in 

subjects as diverse as environmental, solid waste, water resources and atmospheric sciences, policy analysis, IT, 

and energy-efficient design-build services. 

Table 7. Environmental Services 

Service Offering Description 

HUD/FEMA Environmental 
Reviews 

Tetra Tech supports our clients of the wide range of disaster recovery, hazard 
mitigation, and other types of projects funded by HUD and FEMA, Tetra Tech 
provides comprehensive environmental and historic preservation review 
support. In addition to preparation of documents under the National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), we assist in compliance with related laws, 
regulations, and Executive Orders.  

Decontamination  Tetra Tech’s also provides field services for clients facing decontamination 
projects throughout the nation. Tasks under this category include: Technical 
oversight, characterization and disposal of radioactive residues, radiation 
safety program management, documentation of site conditions, Radiological 



EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF SERVICES 

 A-17  

Service Offering Description 

surveys, and internal dose assessment calculations to document the risk and 
dose to personnel from the contamination 

Climate Change Adaptation Tetra Tech provides climate change adaptation study services to reduce risk 
and vulnerabilities for our clients. This includes: 

 Development of climate action plans and sustainability strategies 

 General reporting and verification 

 Comprehensive climate change response 

 Technical guidelines on transportation emissions, industrial process 
emissions, and indirect emissions 

Restoration and Remediation Tetra Tech assists clients with a variety of restoration and remediation 
professional services prior to or after disasters, including: 

 Environmental site investigations 

 Risk assessment 

 Fate and transport modeling 

 Performance-based remediation 

 Radiological decontamination and decommissioning 

 Ecosystem restoration 

 Geographic information systems (GIS) 

 Site restoration and remediation 

 Due diligence assessments 

 Remedial system design/construction 

 Remedial process optimization 

 Construction management 

 Environmental compliance 

 Chemical/fuels and waste management 

 Regulatory support/expert witness services 

 Liability transfer model 

 Third-party review – remedial strategies 

 Geophysical services 

  









 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

8-25-2016 

AGENDA ITEM #11 

 

2016 CONCRETE IMPROVEMENTS 

BLANKET ROAD CLOSURE REQUEST 

 



 
7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040  •  Houston, TX 77074  • (713)-400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com •  TX PE Firm No. 13872 

 

 
August 17, 2016 
 
 
Mr. Barry K. Brock 
Director of Public Works 
City of Humble 
102 Granberry 
Humble, Texas 77338 
 
Re: Road Closures during Construction 

2016 Concrete Pavement Improvements Project 
City of Humble 
ARKK Job No.: 13-009b 

 
Dear Mr. Brock: 
 
As requested, the following streets will require temporary road closures and/or one-way access 
only to facilitate the roadway construction for the above referenced project: 
 

 S Memorial Drive south of Memorial Boulevard 

 Avenue C between 1st Street and 3rd Street 

 Avenue D between 1st Street and 7th Street 

 Avenue E between 1st Street and 5th Street 

 Avenue F between 1st Street and 6th Street 

 Avenue H between 1st Street and 4th Street 

 2nd Street between Avenue C and Avenue H 

 3rd Street between Avenue C and Avenue H 

 4th Street between Charles Street and N Houston Avenue 

 5th Street between Avenue D and Avenue F 

 6th Street between Avenue D and Avenue F 

 7th Street between Charles Street and N Houston Avenue 

 E Main Street east of S Houston Avenue 

 Davis Street east of S Houston Avenue 

 Hirsch Street between E Main Street and 1st Street 

 Isaacks Road at Wilson Road intersection (Traffic Signal Construction) 

 Herman Street between Avenue D and Avenue E 
 
 
 
 



 
7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040  •  Houston, TX 77074  • (713)-400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com •  TX PE Firm No. 13872 

 

If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

ARKK ENGINEERS 
 

 

 

 
John D. Rudloff, P.E. 
Senior Project Manager 
  


	Item 8 - USA Plat 1.pdf
	16055-PLAT.dwg
	30X42





